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1.	 INTRODUCTION

A total of twenty-six (26) committees, performing respective 
functions such as advisory, management and governance, have 
been established by Top Management to ensure inclusiveness 
and participatory governance processes. The committees 
support Top Management in the performance of its oversight 
role and the overall achievement of the strategic objectives of 
The Presidency. 

The committees have established Charters which are reviewed 
every three years or as and when there is a change in legislation, 
prescript or standards. Top Management initiated a review 
of the functionality of the governance structures to ensure 
alignment with the principles of the King Code (King IV) on 
good governance.

Top Management continues to set the tone in ensuring that a 
culture of ethics, compliance and risk management pervades all 
strategic and operational activities of The Presidency within and 
across all branches. 

The Chief Financial Officer provided independent, impartial and 
sound advice to Top Management on matters related to financial 
and management accounting, internal control, Supply Chain 
Management, asset management, and contract management. 
The Chief Financial Officer further ensured compliance with 
the PFMA, Treasury Regulations and all other related directives 
and prescripts issued by the National Treasury. 

Internal Auditing is an important aspect of The Presidency 
governance framework as it provides an independent and 
objective assurance service to Top Management. The Chief 
Audit Executive ensured that a systematic and disciplined 
approach to the evaluation of the adequacy and effectiveness 
of governance, financial and operational controls throughout 
the organisation is in place.

The Chief Risk Officer ensured that a sustainable process was 
created and maintained to identify, assess and manage risks that 
might threaten the achievement of organisational objectives. In 
executing the ethics functions in line with the Public Service 
Regulations, PSR, 2016, the Chief Risk Officer ensured that a 
Fraud and Ethics Management Strategy was developed and 
that workshops on the new provisions of PSR, 2016, are being 
conducted across The Presidency in all the Branches.

2.	 RISK MANAGEMENT 

During the period under review, the Enterprise-Risk 
Management Framework was reviewed and adopted by The 
Presidency’s Risk Management Committee (RMC) for the next 
three years, or as and when there are changes in legislation, 
prescripts or standards.

The Framework set out key elements of risk management, as 
well as its benefits and limitations and roles and responsibilities 
of various role players within The Presidency. It also endeavours 
to provide all employees and managers with practical tools 
and techniques. These should be used by all Business Units in 
applying risk management methods, processes and procedures. 
The application of the Framework is intended to ensure an 
improved risk culture, improved decision-making, better 
allocation of resources and a risk-informed approach to 
management throughout The Presidency.

The Presidency’s risk management processes were implemented 
in a manner consistent with the Risk Management Policy.

The strategic risk profile was reviewed twice during the course 
of the financial year under review. In the first quarter of the 
financial year, the strategic risk profile was reviewed to identify 
emerging risks and to re-evaluate the risks that were already 
on its strategic risk profile. In the third quarter, a process was 
initiated to review the identified risks to ensure alignment with 
the strategic objectives.

The Risk Management Committee (RMC) was functional 
and held four meetings as required in terms of its charter. 
In all instances, the committee was able to quorate and was 
therefore able to take decisions where required. As part of 
its core mandate, the committee evaluated the Strategic Risk 
Register, the adequacy and perceived control effectiveness of the 
Mitigation Action Plans formulated by Risk Owners. In executing 
its oversight role by providing assurance, the RMC monitored 
risks emanating from the Loss Control Committee, the Security 
Committee, the Occupational Health and Safety Committee, 
as well as the Information Technology Steering Committee. The 
Supply Chain Management plan became a standing item in all 
of the RMC meetings to monitor the implementation of the 
plan. The RMC provided input I regarding the mitigation of the 
identified risk.

Some of the identified risks in the strategic risk profile have 
been mitigated and other identified risks remain high in terms 
of risk magnitude. This is due to a range of factors such as 
dependencies on third parties. The re-formulated mitigation 

PART C: 
GOVERNANCE



64

THE PRESIDENCY
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018

plans are designed to treat and reduce the risk magnitude to 
acceptable levels. This would be the key focus in the 2018/19 
Financial Year. 

The RMC Charter was reviewed in the last quarter of 
the financial year due to the initiative undertaken by Top 
Management to review the functionality of governance 
structures. The key aspect of the review of the Charter was to 
elevate the membership of the RMC from Director Level to 
Chief Director Level to prevent the likelihood of a conflict of 
interest. This is due to some Directors serving in the RMC also 
operating as Risk Owners. The committee was able to meet the 
targets that were outlined in its Annual Work Plan and advised 
management on the overall effectiveness of the system of risk 
management, especially the mitigation of unacceptable levels 
of risk.

The risk management report was a standing item on the 
agenda of the Risk Management Committee Audit Committee 
meetings. The committee advised the department on risk 
management and independently monitored the effectiveness 
of the system of risk management. 

In terms of Business Continuity Management, a process was 
initiated to acquire a service provider to implement a business 
continuity management (BCM) and resilience programme in 
The Presidency. The process of contracting a service provider to 
implement the BCM programme was initiated in the 2017/18 
Financial Year and is to be finalised in the 2018/19 Financial Year.

3.	 FRAUD AND CORRUPTION 

The Public Service Regulations (PSR), 2016, which came 
into effect on 01 August 2016, compelled all government 
departments to establish an Ethics Infrastructure in all 
government departments. The Ethics Infrastructure consists 
of an Ethics Committee, to provide oversight on ethics 
management in the department. The Ethics Committee is to be 
chaired by a Deputy Director-General, who would also serve 
as the departmental Ethics Champion.

In line with the provisions of PSR, 2016, Top Management 
established the Ethics Committee chaired by Deputy Director-
General, Ms Lusanda Mxenge. Furthermore, 2017/18 was 
the inaugural year of the Ethics Committee. In its first year of 
operation, the committee adopted the Fraud Prevention and 
Ethics Management Strategy. The strategy was implemented 
through the Ethics and Anti-Fraud Implementation Plan. This 
was monitored through quarterly progress reports presented 
to the Committee and submitted to the Accounting Officer 
for approval.

In ensuring compliance with PSR, 2016, the Committee quarterly 
monitored the register of employees engaged in work outside 
of the Public Service (Outside Remunerative Work) and the 
Gifts, Donations and Sponsorships Register.

These initiatives are part of the ongoing process of building an 
ethical organisational culture, which is essential to the success 
of the Fraud Prevention and Ethics Management Strategy.

In ensuring compliance with the Protected Disclosure Act, 
The Presidency strives to create a culture that facilitates the 
disclosure of information by employees relating to criminal 
and other irregular conduct in the workplace. This is done 
in a responsible manner by providing clear guidelines for the 
disclosure of such information and protection against reprisals 
as a result of such disclosure. The Whistle Blowing Policy is used 
as such a mechanism and was communicated throughout the 
reporting period. The policy provides various mechanisms for 
raising concerns/making a disclosure internally or externally. All 
reported cases were attended to in line with the provisions of 
the Whistle Blowing Policy. 

The Committee also adopted the Fraud Risk Register and 
monitored the mitigation plans by Risk Owners to ensure that 
the propensity of fraud risk is minimised in The Presidency. 
Furthermore, a Fraud Log Register is reviewed by the 
Committee quarterly to monitor any cases of fraud reported 
through Whistle-Blowing, Internal Audit process, reporting by 
Supervisors (first line of defence), and the internal verification 
process (qualifications, specimen signatures to detect ghost 
workers). The Committee established a Whistle-Blowing 
Incident Reporting System where all cases could be registered 
and followed-up for completeness. The Incident Register  
does not provide personal details of the Whistle-Blower, only 
the case number and information on the progress of the 
reported cases. 

There were no cases referred to The Presidency through  
the National Anti-Corruption Hotline during the period  
under review.

4.	 MINIMISING CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

The Conflict of Interest Policy was implemented during the 
period under review. The review of the RMC Charter, SMS and 
Branch Heads Charters included provisions of the policy in the 
definition of Conflict of Interest (actual, perceived or potential).
In line with the policy, officials serving in governance structures, 
recruitment and selection panels, tender evaluation panels etc. 
are required to declare actual or potential conflict of interest at 
the beginning of each specific meeting. Conflict of Interest was 
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also monitored when reviewing applications for remunerative 
work outside the public service as well as applications to 
retain gifts, donations and sponsorships received or donated 
by officials. The Gifts, Donations and Sponsorships Policy was 
the key instrument utilised to monitor any conflict of interest 
emanating from the acceptance or offering of gifts by Presidency 
officials. In terms of the policy, employees were required to 
declare receipt or non-receipt of gifts on a monthly basis. This 
was done to ensure that gifts, donations and sponsorships 
occurred in a controlled environment and to minimise risks and 
conflicts of interests. The Gift Register was maintained to record 
the voluntary declaration of gifts, donations and sponsorships 
received by officials and those received or offered on behalf of 
The Presidency, be it in cash or in-kind. 

Financial disclosures in relation to the period 1 April 2016 to 
31 March 2017 were completed successfully during the period 
1 – 30 April 2017 by SMS, OSD, DDs, SCM and Financial 
Management staff. The department obtained 100% compliance 
as the report was also submitted to the Office of the Public 
Service Commission by the Executive Authority within the 
required time frame of 31 May 2017. 

Workshops on the requirements of PSR, 2016, were conducted 
across The Presidency, to raise awareness. The key issues 
discussed were the Code of Conduct, Doing business with 
the State, Other Remunerative Work, Gift declarations and 
financial disclosures. In terms of the Outside Remunerative 
Work applications only one application was not approved due 
to a Conflict of Interest. 

5.	 CODE OF CONDUCT 

The Code of Conduct was communicated to all employees in 
the beginning of the Financial Year. This was done during the 
Ethics Awareness sessions where provisions of PSR, 2016, were 
discussed and during the Induction Workshop. Furthermore, 
all employees were required to acknowledge having read and 
understood the Code. A 100% acknowledgement scorecard 
was received as all officials indicated that they read and 
understood the contents of the Code.

Any breaches of code of conduct were dealt with in terms of 
the guidelines on labour relations and disciplinary procedures. 
Cases were investigated and a register of misconduct was 
maintained to track the reported cases that were under 
investigation.

6.	 HEALTH SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES 

The Presidency complies with the Occupational Health and 
Safety Act 85 of 1993.The objectives of this act are:

•	 To provide for the health and safety of persons at work
•	 To provide for the health and safety of persons in connection 

with the use of plants and machinery
•	 The protection of persons other than persons at work 

against hazards to health and safety arising out of or in 
connection with the activities of persons at work

•	 To establish an advisory council for occupational health  
and safety

In order to be compliant with the above objectives, a health and 
safety programme exists made up of the following;

•	 Section 16.2 appointment
•	 Appointment of Health and Safety Representatives
•	 Health and Safety policy addressing SHERQ elements
•	 Health and Safety Committee
•	 Approved Health and Safety Charter
•	 Approved emergency plan
•	 Emergency evacuation drills and
•	 On-going refresher training

The above programme impacts on the organisation in the 
following ways;

•	 Hazard Identification and Risk Assessments are periodically 
conducted.

•	 Accidents at the work place are dealt with according to the 
Compensation for Occupational Injuries and Diseases Act, 
130 of 1993; and

•	 The Employer is able to provide and maintain a safe working 
environment through conducting inspections and engaging 
external stakeholders such as the Department of Public 
Works, Department of Labour, and different divisions under 
the City of Tshwane Municipality.
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7.	 PRIOR MODIFICATIONS TO AUDIT REPORTS 

NATURE OF QUALIFICATION, 
DISCLAIMER, ADVERSE OPINION AND 

MATTERS OF NON-COMPLIANCE

FINANCIAL YEAR 
IN WHICH IT FIRST 

AROSE
PROGRESS MADE IN CLEARING / RESOLVING THE MATTER

Restatement of corresponding figures as 
disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements, 
the corresponding figures for 31 March 2016 
financial year have been restated as a result of an 
error in the financial statements of the department 
at, and for the year ended, 31 March 2017

2016/17 Management has enhanced controls in reviewing of financial statements. Management 
established a task team to review financial statements to improve financial reporting. 

Expenditure management
Effective steps were not taken to prevent 
irregular expenditure amounting to 
R16,913 million as disclosed in note 26 to 
the annual financial statements, as required by 
section 38(1)(c)(ii) of the PFMA and treasury 
regulation 9.1.1.

2016/17 Preventative measures for reducing irregular expenditure have been put in place by 
management. Management has further developed checklists that will ensure that 
due processes are adhered to. Where there are transgressions, the AO put a register 
for offenders in place which will be submitted to her on quarterly basis to ensure 
consequence management. SCM unit maintains a register of units that have breached  
the legislations

Contractual obligations and/or money owed by 
the department were not met and/or settled 
within 30 days, as required by section 38(1)(f) 
of the PFMA and treasury regulation 8.2.3.

2016/17 Management has incorporated 30 days payment as a Key Performance Area in CFO’s 
Performance Agreement and it has been cascaded to SCM and Finance officials to 
ensure compliance. The performance of payments is monitored by the AO and DG on 
a monthly basis. Management is of the view that elevating this to the highest level will 
improve performance in this area

Procurement and contract management
Goods and services with a transaction value 
below R500 000 were procured without 
obtaining the required price quotations, as 
required by Treasury Regulation 16A6.1.

2016/17 A turnaround strategy for improving Supply Chain performance was developed and 
implemented. The strategy contains a holistic view of matters that needed to be 
addressed to improve SCM performance. There are seven segments which have been 
reviewed in Supply Chain Management unit.

SCM policy and all relevant areas have been clearly outlined to ensure role clarification. 
Management is committed to continuous training and mentoring of supervisors. 
Furthermore, segregation of duties has been adhered to, in order to improve grey areas 
in roles and responsibilities.

Quotations were awarded to suppliers whose 
tax matters had not been declared by the 
South African Revenue Services to be in order 
as required by Treasury Regulations 16A9.1(d) 
and the Preferential Procurement Regulations.
Quotations were awarded to bidders based 
on preference points that were not allocated 
and/or calculated in accordance with the 
requirements of the Preferential Procurement 
Policy Framework Act and its regulations.
Bid documentation for procurement of 
commodities designated for local content and 
production, did not stipulate the minimum 
threshold for local production and content 
as required by Preferential Procurement 
Regulation 9(1).
Allegations relating to potential collusive 
bidding between prospective service providers 
were investigated. The report confirmed the 
collusive bidding as well as fraudulent behaviour. 
Based on the recommendations of the report 
management is in the process to extend the 
scope of the investigation prior to further 
actions being implemented. It should be noted 
that the officials implicated are no longer in the 
service of the department. The department 
has confirmed that they intend to report the 
confirmed instance of collusive bidding to 
both National Treasury and the Competition 
Commissioner. 

2016/17 Management implemented the recommendations cited in the collusive bidding 
investigation report. A criminal case was opened with SAPS to deal with colleagues that 
resigned. Management will implement the recommendations that will emanate from 
the extended investigation as soon as the investigation is finalised. Furthermore, The 
Presidency has registered a case with Competition Commissioner to deal with service 
providers that were involved in the matter. Management is committed to working with 
the Auditor-General of South Africa to ensure an outcome of clean administration for 
The Presidency and also enhance accountability on the effective and efficient use of  
the Public funds
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8.	 INTERNAL CONTROL UNIT 

The function of the Internal Control unit is to provide reasonable assurance to the office of the Chief Financial Officer regarding the 
reliability of reporting; the effectiveness and efficiency of operations and compliance with the applicable financial laws and regulations.

The Internal Control unit maintains a register for irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure. On identification of any irregular, fruitless 
and wasteful expenditure, Internal Control conducts an internal investigation to determine the root causes and completeness of 
the irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure. A report is provided to the Accounting Officer with recommendations regarding 
action to be taken.

The unit is responsible for co-ordination, consolidation and monitoring the action plans (Audit Matrix) that are designed to address 
audit findings provided by the office of the Auditor-General of South Africa on The Presidency management report. The audit matrix 
is a standing agenda item at management forums, to ensure monthly progress reports on the action plans.

9.	 INTERNAL AUDIT AND AUDIT COMMITTEES 

The Presidency has an Internal Audit Unit which functions under the control and direction of an Audit Committee.

The Internal Audit Unit is independent and its work is managed in accordance with the Institute of Internal Auditor’s International 
Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing (Standards). Recognition is hereby given to the Internal Audit Unit for the 
achievement of General Conformance in an independent external quality assurance review. 

The Internal Audit Unit performed risk based audits and reviews. During the reporting period, the Internal Audit Unit performed 
its activities in line with the approved 2017/2018 Annual Audit Plan. With the approval of the Audit Committee, the Internal Audit 
Unit conducted ad hoc investigations in the year under review. Internal Audit Unit provides recommendations to management 
with regards to internal control, risk management and governance processes. In addition, Internal Audit Unit provides management 
advisory services across all business units of The Presidency when requested by management; and as and when necessary. 

The Presidency has established an Audit Committee in line with Section 77 (c) of the PFMA of 1999. The Audit Committee 
provides oversight on the system of internal control, risk management and governance within The Presidency. The Audit Committee 
comprises of five independent members who collectively have sufficient qualifications and experience to fulfil their duties. The Audit 
Committee comprises of the members listed hereunder. A total of six (6) meetings were held in the financial year. See below in 
tabular form the attendance per member

NAME QUALIFICATIONS
INTERNAL OR 

EXTERNAL
DATE APPOINTED DATE RESIGNED

NO. OF MEETINGS 
ATTENDED

Cedric Boltman (Chairperson) Master of Business Administration External Re-appointed on: 
1 January 2017

N/A 6

Nelson Miya Masters of Business Leadership External 1 October 2015 N/A 5
Given Sibiya Chartered Accountant (CA)SA

Executive Leadership Development 
Programme

External 1 January 2017 N/A 4

Ansia Daniel Master of Business Leadership (MBL)
Certified Internal Auditor (CIA)
BCompt Honours

External 1 February 2017 N/A 5

Leah Khumalo BA (Law)
Bachelor of Law (LLB)

External 1 March 2017 N/A 4
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We are pleased to present our report for the financial year 
ended 31 March 2018.

Audit Committee Responsibility

The Audit Committee reports that it has complied with its 
responsibilities arising from Section 38(1) (a) (ii) of the PFMA 
and Treasury Regulation 3.1.13. The Audit Committee also 
reports that it has an appropriate Audit Committee Charter, 
which is reviewed annually. It regulated its affairs in compliance 
with this charter and has discharged all its responsibilities as 
contained therein. 

The Effectiveness of Internal Control

The system of internal control was not entirely effective for the 
year under review. Deficiencies in the system of internal control 
and/or deviations were reported by the internal auditors and 
the Auditor-General South Africa. In certain instances, matters 
reported previously have not been fully and satisfactorily 
addressed. Management in some cases did not timeously and 
effectively address the findings reported by the internal audit 
Unit and the Auditor-General. If internal control is to become 
more effective, the findings of the Auditor-General and internal 
audit require to be more rigorously addressed. 

Internal audit

The Audit Committee is satisfied that the internal audit 
function is operating in terms of the International Standards for 
the Professional Practice of internal auditing and applying a risk 
based approach informed by The Presidency’s approved Risk 
Register. This has been confirmed by an independent external 
assessment in which a rating of general conformance was 
achieved.

The approved 2017/2018 internal audit operational plan, as 
well as ad-hoc investigations were completed during the year 
under review. At the request of Management certain additional 
projects were carried out, none of which were regarded as 
impairing the independence of the Internal Audit. 

In-Year Management and Monthly/Quarterly Report 

The Presidency has been reporting monthly and quarterly to 
the National Treasury as is required by the PFMA. 

Evaluation of Financial Statements 

The Audit Committee has: 

•	 Reviewed and discussed the annual financial statements to 
be included in the annual report, with the Auditor-General 
South Africa and the Accounting Officer; 

•	 Reviewed the Auditor-General South Africa’s management 
reports and management’s response thereto; 

•	 Not identified any changes in accounting policies and 
practices; 

•	 Reviewed information on predetermined objectives to be 
included in the annual report; 

The Audit Committee concurs and accepts the conclusions of 
the Auditor-General, on the annual financial statements and is 
of the opinion that the audited annual financial statements be 
accepted and read together with the report of the Auditor-
General. 

Cedric Boltman
Chairperson of the Audit Committee
31 July 2018
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1.	 OVERVIEW OF HUMAN RESOURCES 

The number of posts on the establishment of The Presidency 
decreased in the 2016/2017 reporting year from 632 
(2016/2017) to 614 in 2017/2018 (excluding the Principals), 
548 of these were filled posts. This decrease is attributed to the 
implementation of the cost containment measures in that the 
department’s compensation budget for the MTEF period has 
been cut, as announced by the National Treasury.

Table 3.1.1 shows that the Department spent 97.3% of the total 
voted expenditure for compensation. The largest percentage of 
personnel cost relates to the compensation of employees on 
salary levels 6 to 8 (Table 3.1.2). 

As of 31 March 2018, The Presidency had a total of 51 posts 
additional to the establishment, of which 24 were interns 
(included in the total of 548 employees). The vacancy rate 
increased from 2.5% (2016/2017) to 10.7% in the reporting 
year (Table 3.2.1). If interns are excluded, the vacancy rate is 
reported as 11.2% (Table 3.2.2).

There were 73 posts out of a total of 577 posts subjected to 
job evaluation during the period under review; the majority of 
these jobs (37%) were on salary levels 3-5. One (1) post was 
downgraded in the occupational class: Information Technology 
and related staff due to the implementation of the Public 
Service Coordinating Bargaining Council (PSCBC) Resolution 
3 of 2009 with respect to Assistant and Deputy Director jobs 
(Table 3.4.1). There was one (1) post upgraded in the reporting 
period, on salary levels 6-8.

The Presidency’s staff turnover rate increased from 8.9% 
(2016/2017) to 24% in the reporting year (table 3.5.2). 
However, it must be noted that the percentage of 24% includes 
interns; the turnover rate is 19.6% if the interns are excluded, 
as compared to the 8.1% for the 2016/17 cycle (Table 3.5.1). 
Due to the cost containment measures, The Presidency had 
to prioritise the filling of critical vacancies in the 2017/2018 
financial year to ensure that the filled posts are funded over 
the MTEF period. Therefore, the opportunities for internal 
“promotions” decreased significantly and only two (2) 
employees were appointed to higher posts, compared to the 
four (4) staff members in the 2016/2017 reporting year. One 
employee, being successful for a post on a higher salary level 
within the Department during the reporting period, was on 
salary levels 6-8 and the other one on salary level 9 - 12 (Table 
3.5.5). Mention should be made that most of the recruitment 
during the reporting period were in the salary levels 3 - 5 
category, followed by salary levels 9 - 12 (Table 3.5.1).

Of the total of 146 terminations (Table 3.5.3), 50% of 
the terminations were due to contract expiries (including 
internships), 30.1% were as a result of resignations and 10.3% 
were due to retirements. The turnover of Special Advisers 
(100%), Food Services Aids (33.3%) and Household Food and 
Laundry Services Related (30.5%) were the most affected by 
the terminations. 

Although the significant increase in the vacancy rate can 
largely be contributed to the compensation budget cuts, the 
significant increase in the turnover rate can be attributed to 
the resignation of the President on 14 February 2018 and the 
consequent appointment of a new President on 15 February 
2018. The employees who were appointed on contract, linked 
to the term of office of the President and Deputy President 
terminated during the months of February and March 2018.

In line with the guidelines for the MTEF received from the 
National Treasury in June 2016, the Department embarked 
on a drive to inform employees that their applications for 
early retirement would be considered favourably. A total of 
16 employees retired in the reporting period, this included 
one (1) Employee Initiated Severance Package, eight (8) early 
retirements and seven (7) normal retirements – refer to Tables 
3.5.3. The Employee Initiated Severance Package was approved 
in the previous reporting cycle, but only took effect in the 
current (2017/2018) cycle.

Table 3.6.1 reflects that the staff profile of The Presidency is as 
follows: 56% Black Female, 40.5% Black Male, 3% White Female 
and 0.5% White Male. The representativity of females at Senior 
Management level (L.13-16) is 50%, compared to the 45.3% in 
the previous reporting period. The Presidency embarked on 
a process of benchmarking on best practices regarding active 
disability programmes in other organisations. This exercise 
aimed to assist The Presidency to learn and adopt strategies 
that would add value to an internal disability empowerment 
programme and retention mechanisms for Disability 
Management and Diversity. The benchmarking exercise targeted 
organisations that have achieved or exceeded the national 2% 
target. Workshops were conducted to increase awareness of 
the different disabilities and to encourage voluntary disclosure 
by staff members. The department did not only meet the 2% 
national target, but at the end of the reporting period reports 
3.8%, exceeding the target with 1.8%. This reflects a significant 
progress, if compared to the 1.78%, with a deficit of 0.22% 
reported in the 2016/2017 financial year. 

Ninety eight percent of SMS members in the Department 
signed their performance agreements by 31 May 2017, as 
reflected in Table 3.7.1. The reason for not achieving 100% 
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was due to one SMS exiting the Public Service on 30 April 
2018 before the due date of the submission of performance 
agreements. 

One hundred and thirty seven (137) employees in The 
Presidency received performance rewards for the performance 
cycle 2016/2017 compared to the 127 employees who 
received performance awards in the previous performance 
cycle (2015/16). The breakdown of the performance rewards 
were awarded as follows: 43.9% of staff members on salary 
level 2; 18.3% of staff members on salary levels 3-5, 25.3% 
of staff members on salary level 6-8, 23.8% of staff members 
on salary level 9-12, 14.3% of SMS members and 75% of 
Occupational Specific Dispensation (OSD): Legally Qualified 
Personnel (Tables 3.8.2 and 3.8.4).

For the period January 2017 to December 2017, a total of 3 485 
days were utilised for sick leave, compared to the 4 339 days 
utilised for sick leave in the 2016 calendar year. The number of 
staff members that used sick leave came to 493 (Table 3.10.1) 
and reflects an average of 7 days sick leave per employee who 
used sick leave - compared to the average of 8 days sick leave 
per employee who used sick leave in the 2016/2017 reporting 
period.

It needs to be noted that 2017 is the second year of the three 
year sick leave cycle (2016-2018) and Table 3.10.2 reflects the 
number of employees who used incapacity leave as sixteen 
(16), using an average of 27 working days each. Most of the 
employees using incapacity leave during the reporting period 
were in the salary levels 3 - 5 category (75%).

During the 2017 leave cycle, a total of 13 344 working days 
annual leave were taken by 666 employees - with each 
employee averaging 20 days (Table 3.10.3), which is similar to 
the previous financial year (reporting 19 days on average per 
employee). There are 96 employees in the Department who 
have a total of 2 967 working days capped leave credits which is 
an average of 31 days per person. Capped leave refers to leave 
accrued prior to 1 July 2000, which employees can only utilise 
after exhausting their previous and current leave cycle’s annual 
leave credits. Nine (9) employees’ capped leave credits were 
paid out due to retirement and no employee’s annual leave 
credits of the 2016 leave cycle was paid out due to not being 
able to use these credits as a result of operational requirements.

The eight (8) disciplinary cases reported were dealt with in 
the reporting period and four (4) were finalised during the 
reporting year (Tables 3.12.1 and 3.12.2). The other four (4) 
cases are still being dealt with.

In equipping our staff with skills, a total of 276 employees’ training 
needs were identified (Table 3.13.1). The Presidency provided 
training throughout the year to a total of 48 individuals (Table 
3.13.2). Fifty two percent (52%) of this training was presented 
to females employed in the Department compared to 48% of 
male employees. 

Table 3.15.1 reflects that 42 consultants worked on five projects 
in the Department, with an increase in contract value from 
R3.4 million (2016/2017) to R4.4 million (2017/2018).

PART D: HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT
OVERVIEW OF HUMAN RESOURCES
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TABLE 3.1.1 - Personnel costs by Programme

PROGRAMME

Total Voted 
Expenditure 

(R’000)
Actual

Compensation 
of Employees 
Expenditure 

(R’000)

Training 
Expenditure 

(R’000)

Professional and 
Special Services 

(R’000)

Compensation 
of Employees as 
percent of Total 

Expenditure

Average 
Compensation 
of Employees 

Cost per 
Employee 
(R’000)

Employment 
as at 31 March 
2018 (including 

additional 
appointments)

DTP: Administration 440 124 290 135 1 036 0 65.9 549 528
DTP: Executive Support 41 401 13 314 0 0 32.2 666 20
Z=Total as on Financial 
Systems (BAS) 481 525 303 449 1 036 0 63 554 548
Note: Principals excluded

TABLE 3.1.2 - Personnel costs by Salary band

SALARY BANDS
Compensation of 
Employees Cost 

(R’000)

Percentage of Total 
Personnel Cost for 

Department

Average 
Compensation 

Cost per Employee 
(R’000)

Total Personnel 
Cost for 

Department 
including Goods 

and Transfers 
(R’000)

Number of 
Employees as at 
31 March 2018

Interns 1 435 0.5 60 481 525 24
OSD 4 611 1.5 576 481 525 8
Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 20 749 6.8 576 481 525 36
Skilled (Levels 3-5) 62 247 20.5 576 481 525 108
Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 102 593 33.8 576 481 525 178
Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 77 809 25.6 576 481 525 135
Senior management (Levels 13-16) 34 005 11.2 576 481 525 59
TOTAL 303 449 100 579 481 525 548
Note: Principals excluded and for the total average compensation cost per employee, interns were excluded.

TABLE 3.1.3 - Salaries Overtime Home Owners Allowance and Medical Aid by Programme

PROGRAMME
Salaries 
(R’000)

Salaries 
as % of 

Personnel 
Cost

Overtime 
(R’000)

Overtime 
as % of 

Personnel 
Cost

HOA 
(R’000)

HOA 
as % of 

Personnel 
Cost

Medical Ass. 
(R’000)

Medical 
Ass. as % of 
Personnel 

Cost

Total 
Personnel 
Cost per 

Programme 
(R’000)

DPT: Administration 186 423 87.1 11 988 5.6 5 655 2.6 9 866 4.6 213 932
DPT: Executive Support 8 073 93.7 0 0 167 1.9 372 4.3 8 612
TOTAL 194 496 87.4 11 988 5.4 5 822 2.6 10 238 4.6 222 544

TABLE 3.1.4- Salaries Overtime Home Owners Allowance and Medical Aid by Salary Band

SALARY BANDS
Salaries 
(R’000)

Salaries 
as % of 

Personnel 
Cost

Overtime 
(R’000)

Overtime 
as % of 

Personnel 
Cost

HOA 
(R’000)

HOA 
as % of 

Personnel 
Cost

Medical Ass. 
(R’000)

Medical 
Ass. as % of 
Personnel 

Cost

Total 
Personnel 
Cost per 

Salary Band 
(R’000)

Interns 1 435 100 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 435
OSD 2 947 95.7 0 0 0 0 134 4.3 3 081
Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 13 264 86 1 123 7.3 477 3.1 561 3.6 15 425
Skilled (Levels 3-5) 39 791 84.9 3 248 6.9 1 782 3.8 2 058 4.4 46 879
Highly skilled production 
(Levels 6-8) 65 582 86.2 4 571 6 2 418 3.2 3 475 4.6 76 045
Highly skilled supervision 
(Levels 9-12) 49 739 87.8 3 047 5.4 1 145 2 2 727 4.8 56 658
Senior management 
(Levels 13-16) 21 738 94.4 0 0 0 0 1 283 5.6 23 021
TOTAL 194 496 87.4 11 988 5.4 5 822 2.6 10 238 4.6 222 544
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TABLE 3.2.1 - Employment and Vacancies by Programme as on 31 March 2018

PROGRAMME
Number of Posts as at 

31 March 2018
Number of Posts Filled 

as at 31 March 2018
Vacancy Rate (Includes 

Frozen Posts)

Number of Posts Filled 
Additional to the 

Establishment
Administration 593 528 11 49
DTP: Executive support 21 20 4.8 2
TOTAL 614 548 10.7 51
Note: Principals Excluded 2 

TABLE 3.2 .2- Employment and Vacancies by Salary Band as on 31 March 2018

SALARY BAND
Number of Posts as at 

31 March 2018
Number of Posts Filled 

as at 31 March 2018
Vacancy Rate 

(Includes Frozen Posts)

Number of Posts Filled 
Additional to the 

Establishment
OSD 8 8 0 0
Lower Skilled (Levels 1-2) 43 36 16.3 0
Skilled (Levels 3-5) 127 108 15 10
Highly Skilled Production (Levels 6-8) 190 178 6.3 3
Highly Skilled Supervision (Levels 9-12) 153 135 11.8 6
Senior Management (Levels 13-16) 69 59 14.5 8
TOTAL 590 524 11.2 27
Note: Principals Excluded 2

TABLE 3.2.3 - Employment and Vacancies by Critical Occupation as on 31 March 2018

CRITICAL OCCUPATIONS
Number of Posts as at 

31 March 2018
Number of Posts Filled 

as at 31 March 2018
Vacancy Rate  

(Includes Frozen Posts)

Number of Posts Filled 
Additional to the 

Establishment
Administrative related 110 102 7.3 7
Cleaners in offices workshops hospitals 38 36 5.3 1
Client inform clerks (switchboard, receptionists, 
information clerks) 22 18 18.2 0
Communication and information related 18 16 11.1 0
Finance and economics related 2 2 0 0
Financial and related professionals 26 23 11.5 0
Financial clerks and credit controllers 9 8 11.1 0
Food services aids and waiters 36 28 22.2 0
Household food and laundry services related 61 49 19.7 4
Human resources & organisational development 
& related professionals 8 7 12.5 0
Human resources clerks 11 11 0 0
Human resources related 13 12 7.7 0
Information technology related 19 17 10.5 1
Interns 24 24 0 24
Legal related OSD 8 8 0 0
Librarians and related professionals 3 3 0 0
Library mail and related clerks 10 9 10 0
Logistical support personnel 28 27 3.6 0
Material-recording and transport clerks 3 3 0 0
Messengers porters and deliverers 5 4 20 0
Motor vehicle drivers 23 21 8.7 0
Other occupations (special adviser) 3 3 0 3
Secretaries & other keyboard operating clerks 62 55 11.3 0
Security guards 6 6 0 6
Senior managers 66 56 15.2 5
TOTAL 614 548 10.7 51
Note: Principals Excluded 2

PART D: HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT
HUMAN RESOURCES OVERSIGHT STATISTICS



75

100years of Nelson Mandela 
& Albertina Sisulu

THE PRESIDENCY
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018

TABLE 3.3.1 - SMS Posts information as on 31 March 2018

SMS LEVEL
Total number of 

funded SMS posts 
per level

Total number of 
SMS posts filled 

per level

% of SMS posts 
filled per level

Total number of 
SMS posts vacant 

per level

% of SMS posts 
vacant per level

Director-General/HOD 1 1 100% 0 0%
Salary level 16 but not HOD 2 1 50% 1 50%
Salary level 15 5 4 80% 1 20%
Salary level 14 18 14 78% 4 22%
Salary level 13 40 36 90% 4 10%
TOTAL 66 56 85% 10 15%
Note: Excluding Principals and Special Advisers

TABLE 3.3.2 - SMS Posts information as on 30 September 2017

SMS LEVEL
Total number of 

funded SMS posts 
per level

Total number of 
SMS posts filled 

per level

% of SMS posts 
filled per level

Total number of 
SMS posts vacant 

per level

% of SMS posts 
vacant per level

Director-General/HOD 1 1 100% 0 0%
Salary level 16 but not HOD 1 1 100% 0 0%
Salary level 15 5 4 80% 1 20%
Salary level 14 19 15 79% 4 21%
Salary level 13 40 36 90% 4 10%
TOTAL 66 57 86% 9 14%
Note: Excluding Principals and Special Advisers

TABLE 3.3.3 - Advertising and Filling of SMS posts for the period 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018

SMS LEVEL

Advertising Filling of posts
Number of vacancies per level 

advertised in 6 months of 
becoming vacant

Number of vacancies per level 
filled in 6 months after 

becoming vacant

Number of vacancies per level 
not filled in 6 months but 

filled in 12 months
Director-General/HOD 0 0 0
Salary level 16 but not HOD 0 0 0
Salary level 15 0 0 0
Salary level 14 1 0 0
Salary level 13 2 1 0
TOTAL 3 1 0

TABLE 3.3.4 - Reasons for not having complied with the filling of funded vacant SMS - advertised within 6 months and filled within 12 months after 
becoming vacant for the period 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018
Reasons for vacancy not advertised within 6 months and not filled within 12 months:
The level 14 CD: Legals post was initially advertised within six months of becoming vacant but a suitable candidate could not be identified and it was then re-
advertised with 23 February 2018 as the closing date for receipt of applications.
The vacant level 13 Director: SCM post was advertised within 6 months of it being vacant and the recruitment process is in progress.

TABLE 3.3.5 - Disciplinary steps taken for not complying with the prescribed timeframes for filling SMS posts within 12 months for the period 1 April 2017 
and 31 March 2018
No disciplinary steps have been taken
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TABLE 3.4.1 - Job Evaluation by Salary band for the period 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018

SALARY BAND
Number of 
Posts as at  

1 April 2017

Number 
of Posts 

Evaluated

% of Posts 
Evaluated

Number 
of Posts 

Upgraded

% of 
Upgraded 

Posts 
Evaluated

Number 
of Posts 

Downgraded

% of 
Downgraded 

Posts 
Evaluated

Lower Skilled (Levels 1-2) 42 0 0 0 0 0 0
Skilled (Levels 3-5) 113 37 32.7 0 0 0 0
Highly Skilled Production (Levels 6-8) 198 23 11.6 1 4.3 0 0
Highly Skilled Supervision (Levels 9-12) 156 10 6.4 0 0 1 10
Senior Management Service Band A 40 2 5 0 0 0 0
Senior Management Service Band B 20 1 5 0 0 0 0
Senior Management Service Band C 6 0 0 0 0 0 0
Senior Management Service Band D 2 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL 577 73 12.7 1 1.4 1 1.4
Note: Principals Special Advisers OSD Interns excluded

TABLE 3. 4.2 - Profile of employees whose positions were upgraded due to their posts being upgraded for the period 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018
BENEFICIARIES African Asian Coloured White TOTAL
Female 0 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL 0 0 0 0 0
Employees with a Disability 0 0 0 0 0

TABLE 3.4.3 - Employees whose salary level exceed the grade determined by Job Evaluation (i.t.o PSR 44)

OCCUPATION
Number of 
Employees

Job Evaluation 
Level

Remuneration 
Level

Reason for 
Deviation

No of Employees 
in Department

None

TABLE 3.4.4 - Profile of employees whose salary level exceeded the grade determined by job evaluation (i.t.o PSR 44)
BENEFICIARIES African Asian Coloured White TOTAL
Female 0 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL 0 0 0 0 0
Employees with a Disability 0 0 0 0 0

TABLE 3.5.1 - Annual Turnover Rates by Salary Band for the period 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018

SALARY BAND
Employment at 

Beginning of Period 
1 April 2017

Appointments Terminations Turnover Rate

OSD 8 0 0 0
Lower Skilled (Levels 1-2) 41 2 7 17.1
Skilled (Levels 3-5) 109 16 28 25.7
Highly Skilled Production (Levels 6-8) 194 9 29 14.9
Highly Skilled Supervision (Levels 9-12) 147 11 28 19
Senior Management Service Band A 38 1 8 21.1
Senior Management Service Band B 19 1 5 26.3
Senior Management Service Band C 7 0 4 57.1
Senior Management Service Band D 8 1 5 62.5
TOTAL 571 41 114 20
Note: Principals and Interns excluded

PART D: HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT
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TABLE 3.5.2 - Annual Turnover Rates by Critical Occupation for the period 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018

OCCUPATION
Employment at 

Beginning of Period  
1 April 2017

Appointments Terminations Turnover Rate

Administrative related 107 10 22 20.6
Cleaners in offices workshops hospitals etc. 38 1 2 5.3
Client inform clerks (switchboard, receptionists, 
information clerks) 22 0 3 13.6
Communication and information related 19 1 4 21.1
Finance and economics related 2 0 0 0
Financial and related professionals 24 0 2 8.3
Financial clerks and credit controllers 9 0 1 11.1
Food services aids and waiters 33 2 11 33.3
Household food and laundry services related 59 5 18 30.5
Human resources & organisational development
& related professionals 7 0 0 0
Human resources clerks 11 0 0 0
Human resources related 12 0 0 0
Information technology related 17 3 2 11.8
Interns 29 3 32 110.3
Legal related 8 0 0 0
Librarians and related professionals 3 0 0 0
Library mail and related clerks 10 0 1 10
Logistical support personnel 28 1 1 3.6
Material-recording and transport clerks 3 0 0 0
Messengers porters and deliverers 4 1 1 25
Motor vehicle drivers 23 2 3 13
Other occupations (special adviser) 9 1 9 100
Security guards 0 7 7 0
Secretaries & other keyboard operating clerks 60 5 14 23.3
Senior managers 63 2 13 20.6
TOTAL 600 44 146 24.3
Note: Principals excluded

TABLE 3.5.3 - Reasons why staff are leaving the department for the period 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018

TERMINATION TYPE Number
Percentage of Total 

Terminations 
Percentage of Total 

Employment
TOTAL

Death 3 2.1 0.5 146
Resignation 44 30.1 7.3 146
Expiry of contract 73 50 12.2 146
Transfers 8 5.5 1.3 146
Dismissal-misconduct 2 1.4 0.3 146
Retirement 15 10.3 2.5 146
Severance Package 1 0.7 0.2 146
TOTAL 146 100 24.3 146
Note: Principals excluded
Resignations as % of Employment 7.33%
Total number of employees who left as 
% of total employment 24%
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TABLE 3.5.4 - Promotions by Critical Occupation for the period 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018

OCCUPATION
Employment at 

Beginning of Period  
1 April 2017

Promotions to another 
Salary Level

Salary Level Promotions 
as a % of Employment

Progressions to  
another Notch within 

Salary Level
Administrative related 107 1 0.9 60
Cleaners in offices workshops hospitals etc. 38 0 0 18
Client inform clerks (switchboard, receptionists, 
information clerks) 22 0 0 15
Communication and information related 19 0 0 13
Finance and economics related 2 0 0 2
Financial and related professionals 24 0 0 16
Financial clerks and credit controllers 9 0 0 7
Food services aids and waiters 33 0 0 19
Household food and laundry services related 59 0 0 34
Human resources & organisational development 
& related professionals 7 0 0 6
Human resources clerks 11 0 0 6
Human resources related 12 0 0 10
Information technology related 17 0 0 11
Legal related (OSD) 8 0 0 5
Librarians and related professionals 3 0 0 2
Library mail and related clerks 10 0 0 4
Logistical support personnel 28 0 0 25
Material-recording and transport clerks 3 0 0 2
Messengers porters and deliverers 4 0 0 1
Motor vehicle drivers 23 0 0 14
Secretaries & other keyboard operating clerks 60 1 1.7 30
Senior managers 63 0 0 30
TOTAL 562 2 0.4 330
Note: Principals Special Advisers and Interns excluded

TABLE 3.5.5 - Promotions by Salary Band for the period 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018

SALARY BAND
Employment at 

Beginning of Period  
1 April 2017

Promotions to another 
Salary Level

Salary Level Promotions 
as a % of Employment

Progressions to  
another Notch within 

Salary Level
OSD 8 0 0 5
Lower Skilled (Levels 1-2) 41 0 0 14
Skilled (Levels 3-5) 109 0 0 68
Highly Skilled Production (Levels 6-8) 194 1 0.5 119
Highly Skilled Supervision (Levels 9-12) 147 1 0.7 94
Senior Management (Levels 13-16) 63 0 0 30
TOTAL 562 2 0.4 330
Note: Principals Special Advisers and Interns excluded

PART D: HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT
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TABLE 3. 6.1 - Total number of Employees (incl. Employees with disabilities) per Occupational Category (SASCO)

OCCUPATIONAL 
CATEGORIES

Male 
African

Male 
Coloured

Male 
Indian

Male 
Total 
Blacks

Male 
White

Female 
African

Female 
Coloured

Female 
Indian

Female 
Total 
Blacks

Female 
White

TOTAL

Senior officials and managers 
(SMS) 23 5 0 28 0 20 2 2 24 4 56
Professionals (Levels 11-12) 33 3 1 37 3 38 3 4 45 5 90
Technicians and associate 
professionals (Levels 9-10) 15 1 1 17 0 26 0 0 26 2 45
Clerks (Levels 6-8) 60 3 1 64 0 96 11 2 109 5 178
Service shop and market 
sales workers (Levels 3-5) 41 5 0 46 0 56 6 0 62 0 108
Elementary occupations 
(Level 2) 13 0 0 13 0 21 2 0 23 0 36
OSD 4 0 0 4 0 3 1 0 4 0 8
Interns 12 0 0 12 0 12 0 0 12 0 24
TOTAL 201 17 3 221 3 272 25 8 305 16 545
Note: Principals excluded
Employees with disabilities 6 2 0 8 1 10 0 1 11 1 21

TABLE 3.6.2 - Total number of Employees (incl. Employees with disabilities) per Occupational Bands on 31 March 2018

OCCUPATIONAL BANDS
Male 

African
Male 

Coloured
Male 
Indian

Male 
Total 
Blacks

Male 
White

Female 
African

Female 
Coloured

Female 
Indian

Female 
Total 
Blacks

Female 
White

TOTAL

Top Management 
(Levels 15-16) 3 1 0 4 0 2 0 0 2 0 6
Senior Management 
(Levels 13-14) 20 4 0 24 0 18 2 2 22 4 50
Professionally qualified and 
experienced specialists and 
mid-management 
(Levels 9-12) 48 4 2 54 3 64 3 4 71 7 135
Skilled technical and 
academically qualified 
workers junior management 
supervisors foremen 
(Levels 6-8) 60 3 1 64 0 96 11 2 109 5 178
Semi-skilled and discretionary 
decision making (Levels 3-5) 41 5 0 46 0 56 6 0 62 0 108
Unskilled and defined 
decision making (Level 2) 13 0 0 13 0 21 2 0 23 0 36
OSD 4 0 0 4 0 3 1 0 4 0 8
Interns 12 0 0 12 0 12 0 0 12 0 24
TOTAL 201 17 3 221 3 272 25 8 305 16 545
Note: Principals excluded
Employees with disabilities 6 2 0 8 1 10 0 1 11 1 21
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TABLE 3.6.3 - Recruitment for the period 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018

OCCUPATIONAL BANDS
Male 

African
Male 

Coloured
Male 
Indian

Male 
Total 
Blacks

Male 
White

Female 
African

Female 
Coloured

Female 
Inadian

Female 
Total 
Blacks

Female 
White

TOTAL

Top Management 
(Levels 15-16) 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 1
Senior Management 
(Levels 13-14) 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 0 2
Professionally qualified and 
experienced specialists and 
mid-management 
(Levels 9-12) 4 1 0 5 0 6 0 0 6 0 11
Skilled technical and 
academically qualified 
workers junior management 
supervisors foremen 
(Levels 6-8) 4 0 0 4 0 5 0 0 5 0 9
Semi-skilled and discretionary 
decision making (Levels 3-5) 10 0 0 10 0 6 0 0 6 0 16
Unskilled and defined 
decision making (Level 2) 1 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 1 0 2
Interns 1 0 0 1 0 2 0 0 2 0 3
OSD 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL 20 1 0 21 0 23 0 0 23 0 44
Note: Principals excluded
Employees with disabilities 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

TABLE 3.6.4 - Promotions for the period 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018

OCCUPATIONAL BANDS
Male 

African
Male 

Coloured
Male 
Indian

Male 
Total 
Blacks

Male 
White

Female 
African

Female 
Coloured

Female 
Indian

Female 
Total 
Blacks

Female 
White

TOTAL

Top Management 
(Levels 15-16) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Senior Management 
(Levels 13-14) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Professionally qualified and 
experienced specialists and 
mid-management 
(Levels 9-12) 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Skilled technical and 
academically qualified 
workers junior management 
supervisors foremen 
(Levels 6-8) 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Semi-skilled and discretionary 
decision making (Levels 3-5) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Unskilled and defined 
decision making (Level 2) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
OSD 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
Note: Principals Special Advisers and Interns excluded
Employees with disabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
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TABLE 3 6.5 - Terminations for the period 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018

OCCUPATIONAL BANDS
Male 

African
Male 

Coloured
Male 
Indian

Male 
Total 
Blacks

Male 
White

Female 
African

Female 
Coloured

Female 
Inadian

Female 
Total 
Blacks

Female 
White

TOTAL

Top Management 
(Levels 15-16) 3 1 0 4 1 3 1 0 4 0 9
Senior Management 
(Levels 13-14) 8 1 0 9 0 3 1 0 4 0 13
Professionally qualified and 
experienced specialists and 
mid-management 
(Levels 9-12) 8 2 0 10 0 17 0 0 17 1 28
Skilled technical and 
academically qualified 
workers junior management 
supervisors foremen
(Levels 6-8) 9 0 0 9 0 20 0 0 20 0 29
Semi-skilled and discretionary 
decision making (Levels 3-5) 14 0 0 14 0 12 2 0 14 0 28
Unskilled and defined 
decision making (Level 2) 1 0 0 1 0 5 1 0 6 0 7
OSD 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Interns 15 0 0 15 0 17 0 0 17 0 32
TOTAL 58 4 0 62 1 77 5 0 82 1 146
Note: Principals excluded (includes 24 Interns and 28 contract workers whose contracts expired on 31 March 2018) 
Employees with disabilities 1 1 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 2

TABLE 3.6.6 - Disciplinary Action for the period 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018

DISCIPLINARY ACTION
Male 

African
Male 

Coloured
Male 
Indian

Male 
Total 
Blacks

Male 
White

Female 
African

Female 
Coloured

Female 
Inadian

Female 
Total 
Blacks

Female 
White

TOTAL

TOTAL 3 2 0 5 0 3 0 0 3 0 8
Employees with disabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

TABLE 3 6.7 - Skills Development for the period 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018

OCCUPATIONAL 
CATEGORIES

Male 
African

Male 
Coloured

Male 
Indian

Male 
Total 
Blacks

Male 
White

Female 
African

Female 
Coloured

Female 
Indian

Female 
Total 
Blacks

Female 
White

TOTAL

Legislators Senior Officials 
and Managers (SMS) 6 1 0 7 0 4 0 0 4 2 13
Professionals (Levels 11-12) 5 1 0 6 0 7 0 1 8 1 15
Technicians and Associate 
Professionals (Levels 9-10) 4 0 0 4 0 1 0 0 1 0 5
Clerks (Levels 6-8) 6 0 0 6 0 8 1 0 9 0 15
Service and Sales Workers 
(Levels 3-5) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Elementary Occupations 
(Level 2) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
OSD 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL 21 2 0 23 0 20 1 1 22 3 48
Note: Principals Special Advisers and Interns excluded
Employees with disabilities 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
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TABLE 3.7.1 - Signing of Performance Agreements by SMS Members as on 31 May 2017

SMS LEVEL
Total number of funded 

SMS posts per level
Total number of SMS 
members per level

Total number of 
signed performance 
agreements per level

Signed performance 
agreements as % of 
total number of SMS 
members per level

Director-General/HOD 1 1 1 100%
Salary level 16 but not HOD 1 1 1 100%
Salary level 15 5 4 3 75%
Salary level 14 20 17 17 100%
Salary level 13 40 38 38 100%
TOTAL 67 61 60 98%
Note: Principals and Special Advisers are Excluded in the above

TABLE 3.7.2 - Reasons for not having concluded Performance Agreements for all SMS members as on 31 May 2017
Ms Mbongwa who was appointed at salary level 15 as a DDG had terminated her service on 30 April 2017 before the due date of the submission of 
Performance Agreements.

TABLE 3.7.3 - Disciplinary steps taken against SMS members for not having concluded Performance agreements as on 31 May 2017 
Not applicable

TABLE 3.8.1.- Performance Rewards by Race Gender and Disability for the period 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018

DEMOGRAPHICS
Number of 

Beneficiaries
Total Employment 
as at 1 April 2017

Percentage of Total 
Employment

Cost 
(R’000)

Average Cost per 
Beneficiary (R)

African Female 66 281 23.5 2 011 30 470
African Male 48 204 23.5 1 526 31 792
Asian Female 2 8 25 119 59 500
Asian Male 1 3 33.3 27 27 000
Coloured Female 9 29 31 254 28 222
Coloured Male 4 18 22.2 195 48 750
Total Blacks Female 77 318 24.2 2 199 28 553
Total Blacks Male 53 225 23.6 1 827 34 475
White Female 6 16 37.5 298 49 667
White Male 1 3 33.3 59 59 000
Employees with a disability 7 9 77.8 198 28 247
TOTAL 137 562 24.4 4 489 32 766
Note: Principals Special Advisers and Interns excluded

TABLE 3.8.2 - Performance Rewards by Salary Band for Personnel below Senior Management Service for the period 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018

SALARY BAND
Number of 

Beneficiaries
Total Employment 
as at 1 April 2017

Percentage of Total 
Employment

Cost (R’000)
Average Cost per 

Beneficiary (R)
OSD 6 8 75 424 70 667
Lower Skilled (Levels 1-2) 18 41 43.9 168 9 333
Skilled (Levels 3-5) 20 109 18.3 286 14 300
Highly Skilled Production (Levels 6-8) 49 194 25.3 1 181 24 102
Highly Skilled Supervision (Levels 9-12) 35 147 23.8 1 857 53 057
TOTAL 128 499 25.7 3 916 30 594

PART D: HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT
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TABLE 3.8.3 - Performance Rewards by Critical Occupation for the period 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018

CRITICAL OCCUPATIONS
Number of 

Beneficiaries
Total Employment 
as at 1 April 2017

Percentage of Total 
Employment

Cost 
(R’000)

Average Cost per 
Beneficiary (R)

Financial clerks and credit controllers 2 9 22.2 32 16 000
Household food and laundry services related 9 59 15.3 301 33 444
Human resources clerks 5 11 45.5 103 20 600
Messengers porters and deliverers 3 4 75 26 8 667
Human resources & organisational development & 
related professionals 0 7 0 0 0
Logistical support personnel 7 28 25 211 30 143
Finance and economics related 0 2 0 0 0
Other occupations 0 0 0 0 0
Legal related (OSD) 6 8 75 424 70 667
Financial and related professionals 10 24 41.7 411 41 100
Administrative related 25 107 23.4 1 134 45 360
Communication and information related 4 19 21.1 173 43 250
Secretaries & other keyboard operating clerks 12 60 20 232 19 333
Cleaners in offices workshops hospitals etc. 16 38 42.1 169 10 563
Library mail and related clerks 2 10 20 39 19 500
Human resources related 5 12 41.7 208 41 600
Material-recording and transport clerks 2 3 66.7 45 22 500
Senior managers 9 63 14.3 573 63 667
Client inform clerks (switchboard, receptionists, 
information clerks) 4 22 18.2 85 21 250
Motor vehicle drivers 2 23 8.7 32 16 000
Security guards 0 0 0 0 0
Food services aids and waiters 10 33 30.3 121 12 100
Information technology related 2 17 11.8 72 36 000
Librarians and related professionals 2 3 66.7 90 45 000
TOTAL 137 562 24.4 4 481 32 708
Note: Principals Special Advisers and Interns excluded

TABLE 3.8.4 - Performance Related Rewards (Cash Bonus) by Salary Band for Senior Management Service for the period 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2017

SMS BAND
Number of 

Beneficiaries
Total Employees as 

at 1 April 2017
Percentage of Total 

Employment
Cost 

(R’000)
Average Cost per 

Beneficiary (R)
Band A 8 38 21.1 495 61 875
Band B 1 18 5.6 78 78 000
Band C 0 5 0 0 0
Band D 0 2 0 0 0
TOTAL 9 63 14.3 573 63 667
Note: Principals and Special Advisers excluded

TABLE 3.9.1 - Foreign Workers by Salary Band for the period 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018

SALARY BAND

Employment 
at Beginning 

of Period 
1 April 2017

Percentage 
of Total at 

Beginning of 
Period

Employment 
at End of 
Period

Percentage 
of Total 

at End of 
Period

Change in 
Employment

Percentage 
of Total

Total 
Employment 
at Beginning 

of Period

Total 
Employment 

at End of 
Period

Total 
Change in 

Employment

TOTAL 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

TABLE 3.9.2 - Foreign Workers by Major Occupation for the period 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018

MAJOR 
OCCUPATIONAL 
CLASS

Employment 
at Beginning 

of Period 
1 April 2017

Percentage 
of Total at 

Beginning of 
Period

Employment 
at End of 
Period

Percentage 
of Total 

at End of 
Period

Change in 
Employment

Percentage 
of Total

Total 
Employment 
at Beginning 

of Period

Total 
Employment 

at End of 
Period

Total 
Change in 

Employment

TOTAL 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
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TABLE 3.10.1 - Sick Leave for the period 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017

SALARY BAND Total Days
% Days with 

Medical 
Certification

Number of 
Employees 
using Sick 

Leave

% of Total 
Employees 
using Sick 

Leave

Average 
Days per 
Employee

Estimated 
Cost (R’000)

Total 
number of 
Employees 
using Sick 

Leave

Total num-
ber of days 

with medical 
certification

Interns 69 24.6 29 5.9 2 21 493 17
Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 353 84.7 40 8.1 9 187 493 299
Skilled (Levels 3-5) 759 84.8 86 17.4 9 578 493 644
Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 1 229 76.4 176 35.7 7 1 585 493 939
Highly skilled supervision 
(Levels 9-12) 838 75.9 122 24.7 7 2158 493 636
Senior management (Levels 13-16) 
including OSD 237 80.6 40 8.1 6 1 014 493 191
TOTAL 3 485 78.2 493 100 7 5 543 493 2 726

TABLE 3.10.2 - Disability Leave (Temporary and Permanent) for the period 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017

SALARY BAND Total Days
% Days with 
Medical Cer-

tification

Number of 
Employees 
using Dis-

ability Leave

% of Total 
Employees 
using Dis-

ability Leave

Average 
Days per 
Employee

Estimated 
Cost (R’000)

Total num-
ber of days 

with medical 
certification

Total num-
ber of Em-

ployees using 
Disability 

Leave
Interns - - - - - - - 16
Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 74 100 1 6.3 74 41 74 16
Skilled (Levels 3-5) 87 100 1 6.3 87 68 87 16
Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 251 100 12 75 21 320 251 16
Highly skilled supervision 
(Levels 9-12) 12 100 2 12.5 6 37 12 16
Senior management (Levels 13-16) 
including OSD - - - - - - - 16
TOTAL 424 100 16 100 27 466 424 16

TABLE 3.10.3 - Annual Leave for the period 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017

SALARY BAND
Total Days 

Taken

Average 
Days per 
Employee

Number of 
Employees 
who took 

leave
Interns 483 8 62
Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 982 23 43
Skilled (Levels 3-5) 2 496 21 117
Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 4 532 21 215
Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 3 370 21 159
Senior management (Levels 13-16) including OSD 1 481 21 70
TOTAL 13 344 20 666

TABLE 3.10.4 - Capped Leave for the period 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017

SALARY BAND
Total days of 
capped leave 

taken

Average 
number 
of days 

taken per 
employee

Average 
capped leave 
per employ-
ee as at 31 
December 

2017

Number of 
Employees 
who took 
Capped 

leave

Total 
number of 

capped leave 
available at 
31 Decem-
ber 2017

Number of 
Employees 

with capped 
leave, as 
at end of 

period (31 
December 

2017)
Interns - - - - - -
Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) - - 19 - 19.36 1
Skilled (Levels 3-5) 1 1 51 1 1 116.76 22
Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 1 1 17 1 372.21 22
Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) - - 35 - 1 110.55 32
Senior management (Levels 13-16) including OSD - - 18 - 348.55 19
TOTAL 2 2 31 2 2 967.43 96

PART D: HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT
HUMAN RESOURCES OVERSIGHT STATISTICS
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TABLE 3.10.5 - Leave Payouts for the period 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018

REASON
Total 

Amount 
(R’000)

Number of 
Employees

Average 
Payment per 

Employee 
(R)

Leave payout due to non-utilisation of leave for the 2016 leave cycle - - -
Capped leave payouts on termination of service for 2017/2018 778 9 86 444
Current leave payout on termination of service for 2017/2018 1 618 51 31 725
TOTAL 2 396 60 39 933

TABLE 3.11.1 - Steps taken to reduce the risk of occupational exposure
Units/categories of employees identified to be at 

high risk of contracting HIV & related diseases (if any)
Key steps taken to reduce the risk

None Not Applicable

TABLE 3.11.2 - Details of Health Promotion and HIV/AIDS Programmes
QUESTION YES NO DETAILS IF YES
1. 	Has the department designated a member of the SMS to implement 

the provisions contained in Part VI E of Chapter 1 of the Public 
Service Regulations 2001? If so provide her/his name and position.

X
Ms Mumsy Maake Director: Employee Health and Wellness and Gender 
Mainstreaming

2. 	Does the department have a dedicated unit or have you designated 
specific staff members to promote health and well being of your 
employees? If so indicate the number of employees who are involved 
in this task and the annual budget that is available.

X

Three (3). The allocated budget is R1 986 268.

3. 	Has the department introduced an Employee Assistance or Health 
Promotion Programme for your employees? If so indicate the key 
elements/services of the programme. X

Yes The Presidency has established the Spiritual Support Group Aerobics 
and Fun Walk Club Athletics Club Netball Club Chess Club and Soccer 
Club. Health screening and HIV/AIDS and TB campaigns are conducted 
on a quarterly basis. Chronic Disease management porgramme 
Counseling and Group Dynamics interventions have been implemented.

4. 	Has the department established (a) committee(s) as contemplated in 
Part VI E.5 (e) of Chapter 1 of the Public Service Regulations 2001? If 
so please provide the names of the members of the committee and 
the stakeholder(s) that they represent.

X

1. M Maake - Chairperson  
Members: 
1. Mr R Nemalili; 2. Mr S Kgafela; 3. Ms Z Mvunge; 4. Ms M Smit;  
5. Mr N Tshishonga; 6.Ms G Luthuli; 7. Ms M James Paul; 
8. Ms B Maluleke; 9. Ms M Alexander; 10. Mr A Mbali; 11. Mr S Mbalo;  
12. Mr M Mrwetyana; 13. Mr W Mdovu; 14. Mr R Mankanyi; 
15. Mr J Manaiwa; 16. Ms J De Beer; 17. Mr A Mothwa; 
18. Mr N Magudulela (EHW Specialist;) 19. Ms N Mvubu (OHS 
Specialist-Ex Officio).

5. 	Has the department reviewed the employment policies and practices 
of your department to ensure that these do not unfairly discriminate 
against employees on the basis of their HIV status? If so list the 
employment policies/practices so reviewed.

X

The following policies were reviewed to ensure HIV/AIDS STI & TB 
mainstreaming: Departmental policy on Official working hours and 
overtime Recruitment and Selection Salary Advance Dress Code 
Resettlement Performance Management and Development System 
Secondment Information Security and Special Leave policy.

6. 	Has the department introduced measures to protect HIV-positive 
employees or those perceived to be HIV-positive from discrimination? 
If so list the key elements of these measures. X

There are Departmental initiatives that are being implemented as part of 
the Operational Plan such as Diversity management. Counseling is also 
provided for employees who are HIV positive through the appointed 
external service provide and the on site Occupational Clinic.

7. 	Does the department encourage its employees to undergo Voluntary 
Counseling and Testing? If so list the results that you have achieved. X A total number of 204 employees (141 females & 63 males) tested  

for HIV.
8. 	Has the department developed measures/indicators to monitor & 

evaluate the impact of your health promotion programme? If so list 
these measures/indicators. X

The Department conduct an annual assessment to monitor & evaluate 
the health promotions through the System Monitoring Tool (SMT) 
which is used as the basis for planning and implementation of the 
health promotion programme for the subsequent financial year. The 
EHW quarterly meetings are used as a platform to receive feedback on 
programme implementation and improvement.

TABLE 3.12.1 - Collective Agreements for the period 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018
Number of collective agreements None

TABLE 3.12.2 - Misconduct and Discipline Hearings Finalised for the period 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018
Outcomes of disciplinary hearings Number

Total number of Disciplinary hearings finalised 4
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TABLE 3.12.3 - Types of Misconduct Addressed and Disciplinary Hearings for the period 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018
TYPE OF MISCONDUCT Number Percentage of Total
Insubordination 2 20
Dishonesty/fraud/misrepresentation 3 30
Insolence 1 10
Absenteeism 3 30
Dereliction of duties 1 10
TOTAL 10 100

TABLE 3.12.4 - Grievances addressed in the period 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018
GRIEVANCES Number Percentage of Total
Number of grievances resolved 9 75
Number of grievances not resolved 3 25
Number of grievance logged 12 100

TABLE 3.12.5 - Disputes Lodged for the period 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018
DISPUTES Number Percentage of Total
Number of disputes pending 1 25
Number of disputes dismissed 2 50
Number of disputes upheld 0 0
Number of disputes unresolved 1 25
Number of disputes lodged 4 100

TABLE 3.12.6 - Strike Actions for the period 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018
STRIKE ACTIONS Number
Total number of person working days lost 0
Total cost (R’000) of working days lost 0
Amount (R’000) recovered as a result of no work no pay 0

TABLE 3.12.7 - Precautionary Suspensions for the period 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018
PRECAUTIONARY SUSPENSIONS Number
Number of people suspended 1
Number of people whose suspension exceeded 30 days 1
Average number of days suspended 74
Cost of suspension R 42 345

TABLE 3.13.1 - Training Needs identified for the period 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018

OCCUPATIONAL CATEGORIES Gender
Employment as 
at 1 April 2017

Learnerships

Skills 
Programmes 
& other short 

courses

Other forms 
of training

TOTAL

Legislators senior officials and managers (SMS)
Female 29 0 10 0 10
Male 34 0 15 0 15

Professionals (Levels 11-12)
Female 52 0 26 0 26
Male 42 0 21 0 21

Technicians and associate professionals (Levels 9-10)
Female 33 0 17 0 17
Male 20 0 15 0 15

Clerks (Levels 6-8)
Female 123 0 60 0 60
Male 71 0 35 0 35

Service and sales workers (Levels 3-5)
Female 65 0 33 0 33
Male 44 0 22 0 22

Elementary occupations (Level 2)
Female 28 0 14 0 14
Male 13 0 8 0 8

OSD
Female 4 0 0 0 0
Male 4 0 0 0 0

Gender sub totals Female 334 0 160 0 160
Gender sub totals Male 228 0 116 0 116
TOTAL 562 0 276 0 276
Note: Principals Special Advisors and Interns excluded

PART D: HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT
HUMAN RESOURCES OVERSIGHT STATISTICS
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TABLE 3.13.2 - Training Provided for the period 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018

OCCUPATIONAL CATEGORIES Gender
Employment as 
at 1 April 2017

Learnerships

Skills 
Programmes 
& other short 

courses

Other forms 
of training

TOTAL

Legislators senior officials and managers (SMS)
Female 29 0 6 0 6
Male 34 0 4 3 7

Professionals (Levels 11-12)
Female 52 0 9 0 9
Male 42 0 5 1 6

Technicians and associate professionals (Levels 9-10)
Female 33 0 1 0 1
Male 20 0 4 0 4

Clerks (Levels 6-8)
Female 123 0 8 1 9
Male 71 0 6 0 6

Service and sales workers (Levels 3-5)
Female 65 0 0 0 0
Male 44 0 0 0 0

Elementary occupations (Level 2)
Female 28 0 0 0 0
Male 13 0 0 0 0

OSD
Female 4 0 0 0 0
Male 4 0 0 0 0

Gender sub totals Female 334 0 24 1 25
Gender sub totals Male 228 0 19 4 23
TOTAL 562 0 43 5 48
Note: Principals Special Advisors and Interns excluded

TABLE 3.14.1 - Injury on Duty for the period 1 April 2017 to March 2018
NATURE OF INJURY ON DUTY Number % of Total
Required basic medical attention only 5 100
Temporary Total Disablement 0 0
Permanent Disablement 0 0
Fatal 0 0
TOTAL 5 100

TABLE 3.15.1 - Report on consultant appointments using appropriated funds for the period 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018

PROJECT TITLE
Total number of consultant 

who worked on project
Duration: work days Contract value in Rand

Editing of Annual Report 2016/17  -  -  26 614 
Facilitation and Development of The Presidency APP 
for the 2019/20 financial year - Phase 1 2 3 9 60  483 987 
Internal Audit Co-sourced Partner (NEXIA SAB&T) 14 401  2 430 619 
External Quality Assurance Review - KPMG 3 41  250 515 
Verification 2016/17 and 2017/18 assets monthly 
support and maintanance- TAT I-CHAIN 16 144  1 279 401 

Total number of projects Total individual Consultants Total Duration: Work days Total Contract Value in Rands
5 42 646 4 471 135

TABLE 3.15.2 - Analysis of consultant appointments using appropriated funds in terms of Historically Disadvantaged Individuals (HDIs) for the period 
1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018

PROJECT TITLE
Percentage ownership 

by HDI groups
Percentage management

 by HDI groups

Number of Consultants 
from HDI groups that work 

on the project
Editing of Annual Report 2016/17  -  -  - 
Facilitation and Development of The Presidency APP 
for the 2019/20 financial year - Phase 1 2 3 Excempted Micro Enterprise (EME)  2 
Internal Audit Co-sourced Partner (NEXIA SAB&T) 79% 79% 11 
External Quality Assurance Review - KPMG 33% 33% 1 
Verification 2016/17 and 2017/18 assets monthly 
support and maintenance - TAT I-CHAIN 51% 90%  14 
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TABLE 3.15.3 - Report on consultant appointments using Donor funds for the period of 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018

PROJECT TITLE
Total number of consultants 
that worked on the project

Duration: Work days
Donor and Contract 

value in Rand
None
Total number of projects Total individual consultants Total duration: Work days Total contract value in Rand
None

TABLE 3.15.4 - Analysis of consultant appointments using Donor funds i.t.o. HDIs for the period of 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018

PROJECT TITLE
Percentage ownership 

by HDI groups
Percentage management 

by HDI groups

Number of Consultants 
from HDI groups that work 

on the project
None  

TABLE 3.16.1 - Granting of Employee Initiated Severance Packages for the period of 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018

CATEGORY
No of applications 

received
No of applications 

referred to the MPSA
No of applications 

supported by MPSA
No of Packages 

approved by department
OSD 0 0 0 0
Lower Skilled (Salary Level 2) 0 0 0 0
Skilled (Salary Level 3-5) 0 0 0 0
Highly Skilled Production (Salary Level 6-8) 0 0 0 0
Highly Skilled Production (Salary Level 9-12) 0 0 0 0
Senior Management (Salary Level 13 - 16) 0 0 0 0
TOTAL 0 0 0 0
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REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

1.	 I have audited the financial statements of The Presidency 
set out on pages 96 to 131, which comprise the 
appropriation statement, the statement of financial 
position as at 31 March 2018, and the statement of 
financial performance, statement of changes in net assets 
and cash flow statement for the year then ended, as 
well as the notes to the financial statements, including a 
summary of significant accounting policies. 

2.	 In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of The Presidency 
as at 31 March 2018, and its financial performance and 
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
Modified Cash Standards (MCS) prescribed by National 
Treasury and the requirements of the Public Finance 
Management Act of South Africa 1999 (Act No. 1 of 
1999) (PFMA).

Basis for opinion

3.	 I conducted my audit in accordance with the International 
Standards on Auditing (ISAs). My responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the auditor-
general’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial 
statements section of this auditor’s report. 

4.	 I am independent of the department in accordance with 
the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ 
Code of ethics for professional accountants (IESBA code) 
and the ethical requirements that are relevant to my 
audit in South Africa. I have fulfilled my other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements 
and the IESBA code.

5.	 I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Emphasis of matter

6.	 I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not 
modified in respect of this matter.

Uncertainty relating to the future outcome of 
exceptional litigation

7.	 With reference to note 18 to the financial statements, 
there are a number of cases that might give rise to 
possible obligations for The Presidency, but the cases 
have not yet been finalised. If the state is not successful, 
The Presidency could become responsible for paying the 
legal costs of the applicants. The amounts in question are 
determined by the taxing master and cannot be reliably 
estimated at this point in time.

Other matter

8.	 I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not 
modified in respect of this matter.

Unaudited supplementary schedules

9.	 The supplementary information set out on pages 132 to 
142 does not form part of the financial statements and 
is presented as additional information. I have not audited 
these schedules and, accordingly, I do not express an 
opinion on them.

Responsibilities of the accounting officer for the 
financial statements

10.	 The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with MCS and the requirements of the 
PFMA, and for such internal control as the accounting 
officer determines is necessary to enable the preparation 
of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

11.	 In preparing the financial statements, the accounting 
officer is responsible for assessing The Presidency ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters relating to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless the accounting officer 
either intends to liquidate the department or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Auditor-General’s responsibilities for the audit of the 
financial statements

12.	 My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. 

PART E : F INANCIAL INFORMATION
REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO PARLIAMENT ON
VOTE NO. 1 : THE PRESIDENCY
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Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is 
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with the ISAs will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error 
and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
financial statements. 

13.	 A further description of my responsibilities for the audit 
of the financial statements is included in the annexure to 
this auditor’s report.

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE ANNUAL 
PERFORMANCE REPORT

Introduction and scope

14.	 In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 
2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA) and the general 
notice issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to 
report material findings on the reported performance 
information against predetermined objectives for selected 
programmes presented in the annual performance 
report. I performed procedures to identify findings but 
not to gather evidence to express assurance.

15.	 My procedures address the reported performance 
information, which must be based on the approved 
performance planning documents of the department. I 
have not evaluated the completeness and appropriateness 
of the performance indicators included in the planning 
documents. My procedures also did not extend to any 
disclosures or assertions relating to planned performance 
strategies and information in respect of future periods 
that may be included as part of the reported performance 
information. Accordingly, my findings do not extend to 
these matters. 

16.	 I evaluated the usefulness and reliability of the reported 
performance information in accordance with the criteria 
developed from the performance management and 
reporting framework, as defined in the general notice, 
for the following selected programmes presented in the 
annual performance report of the department for the 
year ended 31 March 2018:

PROGRAMMES
PAGES IN THE ANNUAL 

PERFORMANCE REPORT
Programme 1 – Administration 47-57
Programme 2 – Executive support 57-61

17.	 I performed procedures to determine whether the 
reported performance information was properly 
presented and whether performance was consistent 
with the approved performance planning documents. 
I performed further procedures to determine whether 
the indicators and related targets were measurable and 
relevant, and assessed the reliability of the reported 
performance information to determine whether it was 
valid, accurate and complete.

18.	 I did not raise any material findings on the usefulness and 
reliability of the reported performance information for 
the following programmes:

•	 Programme 1 – Administration
•	 Programme 2 – Executive support

Other matter

19.	 I draw attention to the matter below. 

Achievement of planned targets

20.	 Refer to the annual performance report on pages 47 to 
61 for information on the achievement of planned targets 
for the year and explanations provided for the under and 
overachievement of a number of targets.

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF COMPLIANCE WITH 
LEGISLATION INTRODUCTION AND SCOPE

21.	 In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued 
in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report material 
findings on the compliance of the department with 
specific matters in key legislation. I performed procedures 
to identify findings but not to gather evidence to express 
assurance. 

22.	 The material findings on compliance with specific matters 
in key legislations are as follows.

PART E : F INANCIAL INFORMATION
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Expenditure management

23.	 Effective and appropriate steps were not taken to prevent 
irregular expenditure amounting to R33  581  562, as 
disclosed in note 23 to the annual financial statements, as 
required by section 38(1)(c)(ii) of the PFMA and treasury 
regulation 9.1.1. The majority of the irregular expenditure 
was caused by non-adherence to treasury instruction 
no. 02 of 2017/2018 pertaining to implementation of 
national travel policy framework. 

24.	 Effective steps were not taken to prevent fruitless and 
wasteful expenditure amounting to R27  869  789, as 
disclosed in note 24 to the annual financial statements, as 
required by section 38(1)(c)(ii) of the PFMA and treasury 
regulation 9.1.1. The majority of the fruitless and wasteful 
expenditure disclosed in the financial statements was 
due to inadequate implementation of Cabinet decisions 
pertaining to e-Cabinet.

25.	 Some payments were not made within 30 days or an 
agreed period after receipt of an invoice, as required by 
treasury regulation 8.2.3. 

Procurement and contract management

26.	 Some of the goods and services of a transaction 
value above R500 000 were procured without inviting 
competitive bids and deviations were approved by the 
accounting officer but it was practical to invite competitive 
bids, as required by treasury regulation 16A6.1 and 
16A6.4. 

27.	 Some of the bid documentation for procurement of 
commodities designated for local content and production 
did not meet the stipulated the minimum threshold for 
local production and content as required by the 2017 
preferential procurement regulation 8 (2). Similar non-
compliance was also reported in the prior year. 

Consequence management

28.	 I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence 
that disciplinary steps were taken against officials who 
had incurred irregular expenditure as required by section 
38(1)(h)(iii) of the PFMA. This was due to proper and 
complete records that were not maintained as evidence 
to support the investigations into irregular expenditure. 

29.	 I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit 
evidence that disciplinary steps were taken against officials 
who had incurred fruitless and wasteful expenditure as 
required by section 38(1)(h)(iii) of the PFMA. This was 
due to proper and complete records that were not 
maintained as evidence to support the investigations into 
fruitless and wasteful expenditure. 

OTHER INFORMATION

30.	 The accounting officer is responsible for the other 
information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the annual report. The other 
information does not include the financial statements, 
the auditor’s report and those selected programmes 
presented in the annual performance report that have 
been specifically reported in this auditor’s report.

31.	 My opinion on the financial statements and findings on 
the reported performance information and compliance 
with legislation do not cover the other information and I 
do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.

32.	 In connection with my audit, my responsibility is to read 
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether 
the other information is materially inconsistent with 
the financial statements and the selected programmes 
presented in the annual performance report, or my 
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to 
be materially misstated. 

33.	 If, based on the work I have performed, I conclude that 
there is a material misstatement in this other information, 
I am required to report that fact. I have nothing to report 
in this regard.

INTERNAL CONTROL DEFICIENCIES

34.	 I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the 
financial statements, reported performance information 
and compliance with applicable legislation; however, my 
objective was not to express any form of assurance on it. 
The matters reported below are limited to the significant 
internal control deficiencies that resulted in the findings 
on compliance with legislation included in this report.
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Leadership

35.	 Leadership, in some instances, did not exercise effective 
oversight with regard to financial reporting and 
compliance as well as related internal controls.

36.	 Leadership did not implement effective human resource 
management to ensure that adequate and sufficiently 
skilled resources are in place pertaining to the contract 
management unit.

37.	 Leadership was not effective in ensuring that established 
policies and procedures are timeously updated and 
communicated to enable and support the understanding 
and execution of internal control objectives, processes 
and responsibilities.

Financial and performance management

38.	 The review and monitoring of compliance with applicable 
laws and regulations were ineffective in certain instances.

OTHER REPORTS

39.	 I draw attention to the following engagements conducted 
by various parties that had, or could have, an impact on the 
matters reported in the department’s financial statements, 
reported performance information, compliance with 
applicable legislation and other related matters. These 
reports did not form part of my opinion on the financial 
statements or my findings on the reported performance 
information or compliance with legislation.

40.	 Collusive bidding confirmed through an investigation 
conducted in the prior year has been reported to the 
Competition Commissioner. The matter can only be 
reported to the National Treasury once the department 
received a report from the Competition Commissioner.

Pretoria
31 July 2018
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1.	 As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, I exercise 
professional judgement and maintain professional 
scepticism throughout my audit of the financial statements, 
and the procedures performed on reported performance 
information for selected programmes and on the 
department’s compliance with respect to the selected 
subject matters.

Financial statements

2.	 In addition to my responsibility for the audit of the financial 
statements as described in this auditor’s report, I also: 
•	 identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of 

the financial statements whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The 
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•	 obtain an understanding of internal control relevant 
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the department’s internal control.

3.	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by the accounting officer.
•	 conclude on the appropriateness of the accounting 

officer’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
in the preparation of the financial statements. I also 
conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, 
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
department’s ability to continue as a going concern. If I 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required 
to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the financial statements about the material 
uncertainty or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify the opinion on the financial statements. My 
conclusions are based on the information available to 
me at the date of this auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause a department to cease 
continuing as a going concern.

•	 evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content 
of the financial statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation.

Communication with those charged with governance

4.	 I communicate with the accounting officer regarding, among 
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies 
in internal control that I identify during my audit. 

5.	 I also confirm to the accounting officer that I have complied 
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, 
and communicate all relationships and other matters 
that may reasonably be thought to have a bearing on my 
independence and, where applicable, related safeguards. 

PART E : F INANCIAL INFORMATION
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APPROPRIATION PER PROGRAMME
2017/18 2016/17

Adjusted 
Appropria-

tion

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appropria-
tion

Actual 
Expenditure

Variance

Expenditure 
as % of  

final appro-
priation

Final 
Appropria-

tion

Actual 
Expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000
Programme
1.	 Administration 454 330 - (6) 454 324 440 124 14 200 96.9% 455 041 447 709
2.	 Executive Support 46 839 - 6 46 845 41 401 5 444 88.4% 34 734 27 624
Subtotal 501 169 - - 501 169 481 525 19 644 96.1% 489 775 475 333
Statutory Appropriation 6 373 - - 6 373 5 712 661 89.6% 6 035 5 713
President and 
Deputy President salary 6 373 - - 6 373 5 712 661 89.6% 6 035 5 713
TOTAL 507 542 - - 507 542 487 237 20 305 96.0% 495 810 481 046

2017/18 2016/17
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

Expenditure
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

Expenditure
TOTAL (brought forward) 507 542 487 237 495 810 481 046
Reconciliation with statement of financial performance

ADD

Departmental receipts 898 1 343

Actual amounts per statement of financial performance (total revenue) 508 440 497 153

Actual amounts per statement of financial performance (total expenditure) 487 237 481 046
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APPROPRIATION PER ECONOMIC CLASSIFICATION
2017/18 2016/17

Adjusted 
Appropri-

ation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appropri-
ation

Actual 
Expendi-

ture
Variance

Expendi-
ture 

as % of fi-
nal appro-
priation

Final 
Appropri-

ation

Actual 
expendi-

ture

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000
Economic classification
Current payments 487 033 (5 552) - 481 481 462 755 18 726 96.1% 477 579 464 765

Compensation of employees 318 234 - - 318 234 309 162 9 072 97.1% 313 798 308 728
Salaries and wages 283 808 845 - 284 653 275 814 8 839 96.9% 279 288 275 461
Social contributions 34 426 (845) - 33 581 33 348 233 99.3% 34 510 33 267

Goods and services 168 799 (5 552) - 163 247 153 593 9 654 94.1% 163 735 155 991
Administrative fees 1 015 2 260 - 3 275 3 275 - 100.0% 3 052 3 052
Advertising 1 084 (552) - 532 422 110 79.3% 546 447
Minor assets 3 316 (2 430) - 886 561 325 63.3% 1 165 776
Audit costs: External 6 013 (407) - 5 606 5 606 - 100.0% 4 618 4 618
Bursaries: Employees 1 446 (144) - 1 302 1 302 - 100.0% 1 421 1 421
Catering: Departmental activities 3 336 156 - 3 492 3 043 449 87.1% 2 870 2 724
Communication 15 199 (6 590) - 8 609 7 435 1 174 86.4% 11 678 11 170
Computer services 45 137 (11 463) - 33 674 33 033 641 98.1% 27 223 23 833
Consultants: Business and advisory 
services

8 685 (5 910) - 2 775 2 648 127 95.4% 3 546 3 397 

Legal services 5 277 13 637 - 18 914 18 914 - 100.0% 12 259 12 259
Contractors 4 884 (1 528) - 3 356 3 171 185 94.5% 4 221 4 012
Agency and support/outsourced services 5 040 578 - 5 618 5 618 - 100.0% 4 177 3 489
Entertainment 167 (137) - 30 - 30 - 84 1
Fleet services 924 1 809 - 2 733 2 721 12 99.6% 2 927 2 926
Consumable supplies 4 443 (1 359) - 3 084 2 961 123 96.0% 4 081 3 928
Consumable: Stationery, printing and 
office supplies 4 759 (439) - 4 320 3 925 395 90.9% 5 311 5 079
Operating leases 2 189 2 978 - 5 167 5 111 56 98.9% 5 529 5 529
Property payments 92 297 - 389 389 - 100.0% 823 823
Travel and subsistence 47 883 7 010 - 54 893 49 796 5 097 90.7% 59 887 59 232
Training and development 3 156 (2 120) - 1 036 1 036 - 100.0% 3 501 3 501
Operating payments 2 984 (452) - 2 532 2 147 385 84.8% 2 628 2 224
Venues and facilities 1 285 (507) - 778 336 442 43.2% 1 614 1 236
Rental and hiring 485 (239) - 246 143 103 58.1% 574 314

Interest and rent on land - - - - - - - 46 46
Interest - - - - - - - 46 46

Transfers and subsidies 6 191 - - 6 191 6 157 34 99.5% 3 243 3 243
Provinces and municipalities 5 5 - 10 10 - 100.0% 3 3

Municipalities 5 5 - 10 10 - 100.0% 3 3
Municipal bank accounts 5 5 - 10 10 - 100.0% 3 3

Departmental agencies and accounts 36 (36) - - - - - - -
Departmental agencies 36 (36) - - - - - - -

Public corporations and private enterprises - - - - - - - 42 42
Private enterprises - - - - - - - 42 42
Other transfers to private enterprises - - - - - - - 42 42

Households 6 150 31 - 6 181 6 147 34 99.4% 3 198 3 198
Social benefits 6 150 (9) - 6 141 6 107 34 99.4% 2 994 2 994
Other transfers to households - 40 - 40 40 - 100.0% 204 204

Payments for capital assets 14 318 4 380 - 18 698 17 153 1 545 91.7% 14 002 12 052
Machinery and equipment 14 318 4 236 - 18 554 17 009 1 545 91.7% 14 002 12 052

Transport equipment 1 185 (1 185) - - - - - 1 120 821
Other machinery and equipment 13 133 5 421 - 18 554 17 009 1 545 91.7% 12 882 11 231

Intangible assets - 144 - 144 144 - 100.0% - -
Payments for financial assets - 1 172 - 1 172 1 172 - 100.0% 986 986
TOTAL 507 542 - - 507 542 487 237 20 305 96.0% 495 810 481 046
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STATUTORY APPROPRIATION PER ECONOMIC CLASSIFICATION
2017/18 2016/17

Adjusted 
Appropria-

tion

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appropria-
tion

Actual 
Expenditure

Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 
appropria-

tion

Final 
Appropria-

tion

Actual 
expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000
Economic classification
Current payments 6 373 - - 6 373 5 712 661 89.6% 6 035 5 713
Compensation of 
employees 6 373 - - 6 373 5 712 661 89.6% 6 035 5 713
TOTAL 6 373 - - 6 373 5 712 661 89.6% 6 035 5 713
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PROGRAMME 1: ADMINISTRATION
2017/18 2016/17

Adjusted 
Appropri-

ation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appropri-
ation

Actual 
Expendi-

ture
Variance

Expendi-
ture 

as % of fi-
nal appro-
priation

Final 
Appropri-

ation

Actual 
expendi-

ture

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000
Sub programme
1.	 Management 339 715 2 340 - 342 055 336 581 5 474 98.4% 340 917 336 752
2.	 Support services to President 61 795 (2 260) - 59 535 57 068 2 467 95.9% 64 736 62 986
3.	 Support services to Deputy President 52 820 (80) (6) 52 734 46 475 6 259 88.1% 49 388 47 971
Total for sub programmes 454 330 - (6) 454 324 440 124 14 200 96.9% 455 041 447 709
Economic classification
Current payments 436 258 (5 270) - 430 988 417 353 13 635 96.8% 438 542 432 431

Compensation of employees 295 718 - - 295 718 290 136 5 582 98.1% 291 960 288 728
Salaries and wages 263 256 845 - 264 101 258 627 5 474 97.9% 259 335 257 349
Social contributions 32 462 (845) - 31 617 31 509 108 99.7% 32 625 31 379

Goods and services 140 540 (5 270) - 135 270 127 217 8 053 94.0% 146 536 143 657
Administrative fees 1 015 2 152 - 3 167 3 167 - 100.0% 2 971 2 971
Advertising 1 084 (552) - 532 422 110 79.3% 546 447
Minor assets 3 313 (2 434) - 879 554 325 63.0% 1 147 767
Audit costs: External 6 013 (407) - 5 606 5 606 - 100.0.% 4 618 4 618
Bursaries: Employees 1 446 (144) - 1 302 1 302 - 100.0% 1 421 1 421
Catering: Departmental activities 1 964 (445) - 1 519 1 070 449 70.4% 1 398 1 252
Communication 15 074 (6 590) - 8 484 7 410 1 074 87.3% 11 539 11 092
Computer services 22 407 (11 463) - 10 944 10 944 - 100.0% 15 345 15 345
Consultants: Business and 
advisory services 8 685 (5 910) - 2 775 2 648 127 95.4% 3 546 3 397
Legal services 5 277 13 637 - 18 914 18 914 - 100.0% 12 259 12 259
Contractors 4 834 (1 491) - 3 343 3 169 174 94.8% 4 156 3 986
Agency and support/
outsourced services 5 040 578 - 5 618 5 618 - 100.0% 4 177 3 489
Entertainment 167 (137) - 30 - 30 - 74 1
Fleet services 924 1 776 - 2 700 2 688 12 99.6% 2 887 2 886
Consumable supplies 4 416 (1 359) - 3 057 2 954 103 96.6% 4 052 3 920
Consumable: Stationery, printing 
and office supplies 4 614 (331) - 4 283 3 914 369 91.4% 5 134 4 957
Operating leases 2 187 2 712 - 4 899 4 843 56 98.9% 5 397 5 397
Property payments 92 297 - 389 389 - 100.0% 823 823
Travel and subsistence 45 009 7 877 - 52 886 48 271 4 615 91.3% 57 645 57 645
Training and development 3 156 (2 120) - 1 036 1 036 - 100.0% 3 501 3 501
Operating payments 2 560 (452) - 2 108 1 879 229 89.1% 1 968 1 968
Venues and facilities 841 (225) - 616 336 280 54.5% 1 422 1 236
Rental and hiring 422 (239) - 183 83 100 45.4% 510 279

Interest and rent on land - - - - - - - 46 46
Interest - - - - - - - 46 46

Transfers and subsidies 4 871 - (6) 4 865 4 831 34 99.3% 2 652 2 652
Provinces and municipalities 5 5 - 10 10 - 100.0% 3 3

Municipalities 5 5 - 10 10 - 100.0% 3 3
Municipal bank accounts 5 5 - 10 10 - 100.0% 3 3

Departmental agencies and accounts 36 (36) - - - - - - -
Departmental agencies 36 (36) - - - - - - -

Public corporations and 
private enterprises - - - - - - - 42 42

Private enterprises - - - - - - - 42 42
Other transfers to private enterprises - - - - - - - 42 42

Households 4 830 31 (6) 4 855 4 821 34 99.3% 2 607 2 607
Social benefits 4 830 (9) (6) 4 815 4 781 34 99.3% 2 403 2 403
Other transfers to households - 40 - 40 40 - 100.0% 204 204
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PROGRAMME 1: ADMINISTRATION
2017/18 2016/17

Adjusted 
Appropri-

ation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appropri-
ation

Actual 
Expendi-

ture
Variance

Expendi-
ture 

as % of fi-
nal appro-
priation

Final 
Appropri-

ation

Actual 
expendi-

ture

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000
Payments for capital assets 13 201 4 380 - 17 581 17 050 531 97.0% 12 866 11 645

Machinery and equipment 13 201 4 236 - 17 437 16 906 531 97.0% 12 866 11 645
Transport equipment 1 185 (1 185) - - - - - 1 120 821
Other machinery and equipment 12 016 5 421 - 17 437 16 906 531 97.0% 11 746 10 824

Intangible assets - 144 - 144 144 - 100.0% - -
Payments for financial assets - 890 - 890 890 - 100.0% 981 981
TOTAL 454 330 - (6) 454 324 440 124 14 200 96.9% 455 041 447 709

1.1 MANAGEMENT
2017/18 2016/17

Adjusted 
Appropri-

ation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appropri-
ation

Actual 
Expendi-

ture
Variance

Expendi-
ture 

as % of fi-
nal appro-
priation

Final 
Appropri-

ation

Actual 
expendi-

ture

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000
Economic classification
Current payments 325 003 (3 421) - 321 582 316 108 5 474 98.3% 326 509 323 277

Compensation of employees 220 293 (824) - 219 469 213 995 5 474 97.5% 213 107 209 875
Goods and services 104 710 (2 597) - 102 113 102 113 - 100.0% 113 356 113 356
Interest and rent on land - - - - - - - 46 46

Transfers and subsidies 3 196 284 - 3 480 3 480 - 100.0% 2 489 2 489
Provinces and municipalities 5 5 - 10 10 - 100.0% 3 3
Departmental agencies and accounts 36 (36) - - - - - - -
Public corporations and 
private enterprises - - - - - - - 42 42
Households 3 155 315 - 3 470 3 470 - 100.0% 2 444 2 444

Payments for capital assets 11 516 4 694 - 16 210 16 210 - 100.0% 11 120 10 187
Machinery and equipment 11 516 4 550 - 16 066 16 066 - 100.0% 11 120 10 187
Intangible assets - 144 - 144 144 - 100.0% - -

Payments for financial assets - 783 - 783 783 - 100.0% 799 799
TOTAL 339 715 2 340 - 342 055 336 581 5 474 98.4% 340 917 336 752

1.2 SUPPORT SERVICES PRESIDENT
2017/18 2016/17

Adjusted 
Appropri-

ation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appropri-
ation

Actual 
Expendi-

ture
Variance

Expendi-
ture 

as % of fi-
nal appro-
priation

Final 
Appropri-

ation

Actual 
expendi-

ture

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000
Economic classification
Current payments 60 484 (1 835) - 58 649 56 182 2 467 95.8% 63 597 61 922
Compensation of employees 39 288 824 - 40 112 40 112 - 100.0% 42 628 42 628
Goods and services 21 196 (2 659) - 18 537 16 070 2 467 86.7% 20 969 19 294
Transfers and subsidies 460 (204) - 256 256 - 100.0% 43 43
Households 460 (204) - 256 256 - 100.0% 43 43
Payments for capital assets 851 (314) - 537 537 - 100.0% 950 875
Machinery and equipment 851 (314) - 537 537 - 100.0% 950 875
Payments for financial assets - 93 - 93 93 - 100.0% 146 146
TOTAL 61 795 (2 260) - 59 535 57 068 2 467 95.9% 64 736 62 986
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1.3 SUPPORT SERVICES DEPUTY PRESIDENT
2017/18 2016/17

Adjusted 
Appropri-

ation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appropri-
ation

Actual 
Expendi-

ture
Variance

Expendi-
ture 

as % of fi-
nal appro-
priation

Final 
Appropri-

ation

Actual 
expendi-

ture

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000
Economic classification
Current payments 50 771 (14) - 50 757 45 063 5 694 88.8% 48 436 47 232
Compensation of employees 36 137 - - 36 137 36 029 108 99.7% 36 225 36 225
Goods and services 14 634 (14) - 14 620 9 034 5 586 61.8% 12 211 11 007
Transfers and subsidies 1 215 (80) (6) 1 129 1 095 34 97.0% 120 120
Households 1 215 (80) (6) 1 129 1 095 34 97.0% 120 120
Payments for capital assets 834 - - 834 303 531 36.3% 796 583
Machinery and equipment 834 - - 834 303 531 36.3% 796 583
Payments for financial assets - 14 - 14 14 - 100.0% 36 36
TOTAL 52 820 (80) (6) 52 734 46 475 6 259 88.1% 49 388 47 971

PROGRAMME 2: EXECUTIVE SUPPORT
2017/18 2016/17

Adjusted 
Appropri-

ation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appropri-
ation

Actual 
Expendi-

ture
Variance

Expendi-
ture 

as % of fi-
nal appro-
priation

Final 
Appropri-

ation

Actual 
expendi-

ture

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000
Sub programme
1.	 Cabinet Services 46 839 - 6 46 845 41 401 5 444 88.4% 34 734 27 624
Total for sub programmes 46 839 - 6 46 845 41 401 5 444 88.4% 34 734 27 624
Economic classification
Current payments 44 402 (282) - 44 120 39 690 4 430 90.0% 33 002 26 621

Compensation of employees 16 143 - - 16 143 13 314 2 829 82.5% 15 803 14 287
Salaries and wages 14 179 - - 14 179 11 890 2 289 83.9% 13 918 12 766
Social contributions 1 964 - - 1 964 1 424 540 72.5% 1 885 1 521

Goods and services 28 259 (282) - 27 977 26 376 1 601 94.3% 17 199 12 334
Administrative fees - 108 - 108 108 - 100.0% 81 81
Minor assets 3 4 - 7 7 - 100.0% 18 9
Catering: Departmental activities 1 372 601 - 1 973 1 973 - 100.0% 1 472 1 472
Communication 125 - - 125 25 100 20.0% 139 78
Computer services 22 730 - - 22 730 22 089 641 97.2% 11 878 8 488
Contractors 50 (37) - 13 2 11 15.4% 65 26
Entertainment - - - - - - - 10 -
Fleet services - 33 - 33 33 - 100.0% 40 40
Consumable supplies 27 - - 27 7 20 25.9% 29 8
Consumable: Stationery, printing 
and office supplies 145 (108) - 37 11 26 29.7% 177 122
Operating leases 2 266 - 268 268 - 100.0% 132 132
Travel and subsistence 2 874 (867) - 2 007 1 525 482 76.0% 2 242 1 587
Operating payments 424 - - 424 268 156 63.2% 660 256
Venues and facilities 444 (282) - 162 - 162 - 192 -
Rental and hiring 63 - - 63 60 3 95.2% 64 35

Transfers and subsidies 1 320 - 6 1 326 1 326 - 100.0% 591 591
Households 1 320 - 6 1 326 1 326 - 100.0% 591 591

Social benefits 1 320 - 6 1 326 1 326 - 100.0% 591 591
Payments for capital assets 1 117 - - 1 117 103 1 014 9.2% 1 136 407

Machinery and equipment 1 117 - - 1 117 103 1 014 9.2% 1 136 407
Other machinery and equipment 1 117 - - 1 117 103 1 014 9.2% 1 136 407

Payments for financial assets - 282 - 282 282 - 100.0% 5 5
TOTAL 46 839 - 6 46 845 41 401 5 444 88.4% 34 734 27 624
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2.1 CABINET SERVICES
2017/18 2016/17

Adjusted 
Appropri-

ation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appropri-
ation

Actual 
Expendi-

ture
Variance

Expendi-
ture 

as % of fi-
nal appro-
priation

Final 
Appropri-

ation

Actual 
expendi-

ture

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000
Economic classification
Current payments 44 402 (282) - 44 120 39 690 4 430 90.0% 33 002 26 621
Compensation of employees 16 143 - - 16 143 13 314 2 829 82.5% 15 803 14 287
Goods and services 28 259 (282) - 27 977 26 376 1 601 94.3% 17 199 12 334
Transfers and subsidies 1 320 - 6 1 326 1 326 - 100.0% 591 591
Households 1 320 - 6 1 326 1 326 - 100.0% 591 591
Payments for capital assets 1 117 - - 1 117 103 1 014 9.2% 1 136 407
Machinery and equipment 1 117 - - 1 117 103 1 014 9.2% 1 136 407
Payments for financial assets - 282 - 282 282 - 100.0% 5 5
TOTAL 46 839 - 6 46 845 41 401 5 444 88.4% 34 734 27 624
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1.	 Detail of transfers and subsidies as per Appropriation Act (after Virement):

	 Detail of these transactions can be viewed in the note on Transfers and subsidies, disclosure notes and Annexure 1 (A-D) to the Annual Financial Statements.

2.	 Detail of specifically and exclusively appropriated amounts voted (after Virement):

	 Detail of these transactions can be viewed in note 1 (Annual Appropriation) to the Annual Financial Statements.

3.	 Detail on payments for financial assets

	 Detail of these transactions per programme can be viewed in the note on Payments for financial assets to the Annual Financial Statements.

4.	 Explanations of material variances from Amounts Voted (after Virement):

4.1	  Per programme Final Appropriation Actual Expenditure Variance R’000
Variance as a % of 
Final Appropriation

R’000 R’000 R’000
Administration 454 324 440 124 14 200 3%
Executive Support 46 845 41 401 5 444 12%
Statutory Appropriation 6 373 5 712 661 10%

Underspending in Programme 1: Administration is due to posts that were vacated during the year and were not filled to curb anticipated funding constraints over the 
medium term., reduced number of delegates when travelling and the implementation of National Treasury transversal contract on cellphones which resulted in reduction in 
communication costs (airtime and data).Change in administration also resulted in reduction on travelling and other administrative costs. Some of the savings were reprioritised 
to fund IT projects.

Underspending on Programme 2: Executive Support is mainly due to a post that is vacant and an official that was seconded out of the department. Delay in billing by 
service providers, the implementation of National Treasury transversal contract on cellphones and the Forum of South African Directors General (FOSAD) bi-annual planning 
workshops which were held at another government department also resulted in savings.

4.2	 Per economic classification Final Appropriation Actual Expenditure Variance
Variance as a % of 
Final Appropriation

R’000 R’000 R’000
Current payments 481 481 462 755 18 726 4%
Compensation of employees 318 234 309 162 9 072 3%
Goods and services 163 247 153 593 9 654 6%
Transfers and subsidies 6 191 6 157 34 1%
Provinces and municipalities 10 10 - 0%
Households 6 181 6 147 34 1%
Payments for capital assets 18 698 17 153 1 545 8%
Machinery and equipment 18 554 17 009 1 545 8%
Intangible assets 144 144 - 0%
Payments for financial assets 1 172 1 172 - 0%

Underspending on compensation of employees is due to posts that were vacated during the year and were not filled to curb anticipated funding constraints over the medium 
term.

Goods and Services savings were due to reduced number of delegates when travelling and the implementation of National Treasury transversal contract on cellphones  
which resulted in reduction in communication costs (airtime and data). The department also realised savings due to change in administration. The Forum of South African 
Directors General (FOSAD) bi-annual planning workshops which was held at another government department also resulted in savings. Some of the savings were reprioritised 
to fund IT projects.
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PERFORMANCE
Note 2017/18 2016/17

R’000 R’000
REVENUE
Annual appropriation 1 501 169 489 775
Statutory appropriation 2 6 373 6 035
Departmental revenue 3 898 1 343

TOTAL REVENUE 508 440 497 153

EXPENDITURE
Current expenditure
Compensation of employees 4 309 162 308 728
Goods and services 5 153 593 155 992
Interest and rent on land 6 - 46
Total current expenditure 462 755 464 766

Transfers and subsidies
Transfers and subsidies 8 6 157 3 242
Total transfers and subsidies 6 157 3 242

Expenditure for capital assets
Tangible assets 9 17 010 12 051
Intangible assets 9 144 -

Total expenditure for capital assets 17 154 12 051

Payments for financial assets 7 1 171 987

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 487 237 481 046

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR 21 203 16 107

Reconciliation of Net Surplus/(Deficit) for the year
Voted funds 20 305 14 764
Annual appropriation 20 305 14 764
Departmental revenue and NRF Receipts 14 898 1 343
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR 21 203 16 107
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POSITION
Note 2017/18 2016/17

R’000 R’000
ASSETS 
Current assets 22 821 15 283

Cash and cash equivalents 10 13 268 11 016
Prepayments and advances 11 5 709 1 561
Receivables 12 3 844 2 706

 
Non-current assets 246 242

Receivables 12 246 242
 
TOTAL ASSETS 23 067 15 525

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities 20 798 15 083
Voted funds to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund 13 20 305 14 764
Departmental revenue and NRF Receipts to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund 14 265 157
Payables 15 228 162

 
TOTAL LIABILITIES 20 798 15 083

NET ASSETS 2 269 442

Note 2017/18 2016/17
R’000 R’000

Represented by:
Recoverable revenue 2 269 442

TOTAL 2 269 442

PART E : F INANCIAL INFORMATION
STATEMENT ON FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 MARCH 2018



106

THE PRESIDENCY
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018
VOTE NO. 1

NET ASSETS
Note 2017/18 2016/17

R’000 R’000
RECOVERABLE REVENUE
Opening balance 442 337
Transfers: 1 827 105

Debts raised 1 827 105
Closing balance 2 269 442

TOTAL 2 269 442
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CASH FLOW
Note 2017/18 2016/17

R’000 R’000
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts 508 440 497 046

Annual appropriated funds received 1.1 501 169 489 775
Statutory appropriated funds received 2 6 373 6 035
Departmental revenue received 3 870 1 177
Interest received 3.2 28 59

Net (increase)/decrease in working capital (5 224) 1 270
Surrendered to Revenue Fund (15 554) (8 036)
Current payments (462 755) (464 720)
Interest paid 6 - (46)
Payments for financial assets (1 171) (987)
Transfers and subsidies paid (6 157) (3 242)
Net cash flow available from operating activities 16 17 579 21 285

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for capital assets 9 (17 154) (12 051)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 3.3 - 107
Net cash flows from investing activities (17 154) (11 944)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase/(decrease) in net assets 1 827 105
Net cash flows from financing activities 1 827 105

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2 252 9 446

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 11 016 1 570
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 17 13 268 11 016

PART E : F INANCIAL INFORMATION
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018



108

THE PRESIDENCY
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018
VOTE NO. 1

Summary of significant accounting policies 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the following policies, which have been applied consistently 
in all material aspects, unless otherwise indicated. Management has concluded that the financial statements present fairly the 
department’s primary and secondary information. 
The historical cost convention has been used, except where otherwise indicated. Management has used assessments and estimates 
in preparing the annual financial statements. These are based on the best information available at the time of preparation.
Where appropriate and meaningful, additional information has been disclosed to enhance the usefulness of the financial statements 
and to comply with the statutory requirements of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA), Act 1 of 1999 (as amended by Act 
29 of 1999), and the Treasury Regulations issued in terms of the PFMA and the annual Division of Revenue Act. 
1 Basis of preparation 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Modified Cash Standard. 
2 Going concern 

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.
3 Presentation currency

Amounts have been presented in the currency of the South African Rand (R) which is also the functional currency of the 
department. 

4 Rounding 

Unless otherwise stated financial figures have been rounded to the nearest one thousand Rand (R’000).
5 Foreign currency translation

Cash flows arising from foreign currency transactions are translated into South African Rands using the spot exchange rates 
prevailing at the date of payment / receipt.

6 Comparative information
6.1 Prior period comparative information 

Prior period comparative information has been presented in the current year’s financial statements. Where necessary 
figures included in the prior period financial statements have been reclassified to ensure that the format in which the 
information is presented is consistent with the format of the current year’s financial statements.

6.2 Current year comparison with budget 

A comparison between the approved, final budget and actual amounts for each programme and economic classification is 
included in the appropriation statement. 

7 Revenue
7.1 Appropriated funds

Appropriated funds comprises of departmental allocations as well as direct charges against the revenue fund (i.e. statutory 
appropriation).
Appropriated funds are recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date the appropriation becomes 
effective. Adjustments made in terms of the adjustments budget process are recognised in the statement of financial 
performance on the date the adjustments become effective.
The net amount of any appropriated funds due to/from the relevant revenue fund at the reporting date is recognised as a 
payable/receivable in the statement of financial position. 

7.2 Departmental revenue 

Departmental revenue is recognised in the statement of financial performance when received and is subsequently paid into 
the relevant revenue fund, unless stated otherwise.
Any amount owing to the relevant revenue fund at the reporting date is recognised as a payable in the statement of 
financial position. 
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7.3 Accrued departmental revenue 

Accruals in respect of departmental revenue (excluding tax revenue) are recorded in the notes to the financial statements 
when:
•	 it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the department; 

and
•	 the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.
The accrued revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable.
Accrued tax revenue (and related interest and / penalties) is measured at amounts receivable from collecting agents.
Write-offs are made according to the department’s debt write-off policy

8 Expenditure
8.1 Compensation of employees
8.1.1 Salaries and wages

Salaries and wages are recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date of payment. 
8.1.2 Social contributions

Social contributions made by the department in respect of current employees are recognised in the statement of financial 
performance on the date of payment. 
Social contributions made by the department in respect of ex-employees are classified as transfers to households in the 
statement of financial performance on the date of payment.

8.2 Other expenditure

Other expenditure (such as goods and services, transfers and subsidies and payments for capital assets) is recognised in 
the statement of financial performance on the date of payment. The expense is classified as a capital expense if the total 
consideration paid is more than the capitalisation threshold. 

8.3 Accruals and payables not recognised 

Accruals and payables not recognised are recorded in the notes to the financial statements at cost at the reporting date.
8.4 Leases
8.4.1 Operating leases

Operating lease payments made during the reporting period are recognised as current expenditure in the statement of 
financial performance on the date of payment.
The operating lease commitments are recorded in the notes to the financial statements. 

8.4.2 Finance leases 

Finance lease payments made during the reporting period are recognised as capital expenditure in the statement of 
financial performance on the date of payment.
The finance lease commitments are recorded in the notes to the financial statements and are not apportioned between 
the capital and interest portions. 
Finance lease assets acquired at the end of the lease term are recorded and measured at the lower of:
•	 cost, being the fair value of the asset; or
•	 the sum of the minimum lease payments made, including any payments made to acquire ownership at the end of the 

lease term, excluding interest.
9 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost in the statement of financial position. 
Bank overdrafts are shown separately on the face of the statement of financial position as a current liability.
For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held, other short-
term highly liquid investments and bank overdrafts.

10 Prepayments and advances

Prepayments and advances are recognised in the statement of financial position when the department receives or disburses 
the cash. 
Prepayments and advances are initially and subsequently measured at cost.
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11 Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are recognised in the statement of financial position at cost plus accrued interest, where interest is 
charged, less amounts already settled or written-off. Write-offs are made according to the department’s write-off policy.

12 Financial assets
12.1 Financial assets (not covered elsewhere)

A financial asset is recognised initially at its cost plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or 
issue of the financial asset.
At the reporting date, a department shall measure its financial assets at cost, less amounts already settled or written-off, 
except for recognised loans and receivables, which are measured at cost plus accrued interest, where interest is charged, 
less amounts already settled or written-off.

12.2 Impairment of financial assets

Where there is an indication of impairment of a financial asset, an estimation of the reduction in the recorded carrying 
value, to reflect the best estimate of the amount of the future economic benefits expected to be received from that asset, 
is recorded in the notes to the financial statements.

13 Payables

Payables recognised in the statement of financial position are recognised at cost.
14 Capital Assets
14.1 Movable capital assets

Movable capital assets are initially recorded in the notes to the financial statements at cost. Movable capital assets acquired 
through a non-exchange transaction is measured at fair value as at the date of acquisition. 
Where the cost of movable capital assets cannot be determined reliably, the movable capital assets are measured at fair 
value and where fair value cannot be determined; the movable assets are measured at R1. 
All assets acquired prior to 1 April 2002 (or a later date as approved by the OAG) may be recorded at R1.
Movable capital assets are subsequently carried at cost and are not subject to depreciation or impairment.
Subsequent expenditure that is of a capital nature forms part of the cost of the existing asset when ready for use.

14.2 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are initially recorded in the notes to the financial statements at cost. Intangible assets acquired through a 
non-exchange transaction are measured at fair value as at the date of acquisition. 
Internally generated intangible assets are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when the department commences 
the development phase of the project. 
Where the cost of intangible assets cannot be determined reliably, the intangible capital assets are measured at fair value 
and where fair value cannot be determined; the intangible assets are measured at R1. 
All assets acquired prior to 1 April 2002 (or a later date as approved by the OAG) may be recorded at R1.
Intangible assets are subsequently carried at cost and are not subject to depreciation or impairment.
Subsequent expenditure of a capital nature forms part of the cost of the existing asset when ready for use. 

14.3 Project Costs: Work-in-progress

Expenditure of a capital nature is initially recognised in the statement of financial performance at cost when paid. 
Amounts paid towards capital projects are separated from the amounts recognised and accumulated in work-in-progress 
until the underlying asset is ready for use. Once ready for use, the total accumulated payments are recorded in an asset 
register. Subsequent payments to complete the project are added to the capital asset in the asset register. 
Where the department is not the custodian of the completed project asset, the asset is transferred to the custodian 
subsequent to completion.

15 Provisions and Contingents
15.1 Provisions

Provisions are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when there is a present legal or constructive obligation 
to forfeit economic benefits as a result of events in the past and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation 
can be made. The provision is measured as the best estimate of the funds required to settle the present obligation at the 
reporting date.
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15.2 Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when there is a possible obligation that arises 
from past events, and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 
uncertain future events not within the control of the department or when there is a present obligation that is not 
recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or the amount 
of the obligation cannot be measured reliably.

15.3 Contingent assets

Contingent assets are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when a possible asset arises from past events, and 
whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not 
within the control of the department.

15.4 Commitments 

Commitments (other than for transfers and subsidies) are recorded at cost in the notes to the financial statements when 
there is a contractual arrangement or an approval by management in a manner that raises a valid expectation that the 
department will discharge its responsibilities thereby incurring future expenditure that will result in the outflow of cash. 

16 Unauthorised expenditure

Unauthorised expenditure is recognised in the statement of financial position until such time as the expenditure is either:
•	 approved by Parliament or the Provincial Legislature with funding and the related funds are received; or
•	 approved by Parliament or the Provincial Legislature without funding and is written off against the appropriation in the 

statement of financial performance; or
•	 transferred to receivables for recovery.
Unauthorised expenditure is measured at the amount of the confirmed unauthorised expenditure.

17 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recorded in the notes to the financial statements when confirmed. The amount 
recorded is equal to the total value of the fruitless and or wasteful expenditure incurred. 
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is removed from the notes to the financial statements when it is resolved or transferred 
to receivables for recovery.
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure receivables are measured at the amount that is expected to be recoverable and are 
de-recognised when settled or subsequently written-off as irrecoverable.

18 Irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure is recorded in the notes to the financial statements when confirmed. The amount recorded is equal 
to the value of the irregular expenditure incurred unless it is impracticable to determine, in which case reasons therefor 
are provided in the note. 
Irregular expenditure is removed from the note when it is either condoned by the relevant authority, transferred to 
receivables for recovery or not condoned and is not recoverable. 
Irregular expenditure receivables are measured at the amount that is expected to be recoverable and are de-recognised 
when settled or subsequently written-off as irrecoverable.
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19 Changes in accounting policies, accounting estimates and errors

Changes in accounting policies that are effected by management have been applied retrospectively in accordance with MCS 
requirements, except to the extent that it is impracticable to determine the period-specific effects or the cumulative effect 
of the change in policy. In such instances the department shall restate the opening balances of assets, liabilities and net assets 
for the earliest period for which retrospective restatement is practicable.
Changes in accounting estimates are applied prospectively in accordance with MCS requirements.
Correction of errors is applied retrospectively in the period in which the error has occurred in accordance with MCS 
requirements, except to the extent that it is impracticable to determine the period-specific effects or the cumulative effect 
of the error. In such cases the department shall restate the opening balances of assets, liabilities and net assets for the 
earliest period for which retrospective restatement is practicable.

20 Events after the reporting date

Events after the reporting date that are classified as adjusting events have been accounted for in the financial statements. 
The events after the reporting date that are classified as non-adjusting events after the reporting date have been disclosed 
in the notes to the financial statements. 

21 Principal-Agent arrangements

The department is party to a principal-agent arrangement for [include details here]. In terms of the arrangement the 
department is the [principal/agent] and is responsible for [include details here]. All related revenues, expenditures, assets 
and liabilities have been recognised or recorded in terms of the relevant policies listed herein. Additional disclosures have 
been provided in the notes to the financial statements where appropriate. 

22 Departures from the MCS requirements

Management has concluded that the financial statements present fairly the department’s primary and secondary information; 
that the department complied with the Standard. 

23 Capitalisation reserve

The capitalisation reserve comprises of financial assets and/or liabilities originating in a prior reporting period but which are 
recognised in the statement of financial position for the first time in the current reporting period. Amounts are recognised 
in the capitalisation reserves when identified in the current period and are transferred to the National/Provincial Revenue 
Fund when the underlying asset is disposed and the related funds are received.

24 Recoverable revenue

Amounts are recognised as recoverable revenue when a payment made in a previous financial year becomes recoverable 
from a debtor in the current financial year. Amounts are either transferred to the National Revenue Fund when recovered 
or are transferred to the statement of financial performance when written-off.

25 Related party transactions

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between the reporting entity and a related 
party. Related party transactions within the Minister/MEC’s portfolio are recorded in the notes to the financial statements 
when the transaction is not at arm’s length. 
Key management personnel are those persons having the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling 
the activities of the department. The number of individuals and their full compensation is recorded in the notes to the 
financial statements.

26 Inventories 

At the date of acquisition, inventories are recognised at cost in the statement of financial performance.
Where inventories are acquired as part of a non-exchange transaction, the inventories are measured at fair value as at the 
date of acquisition.
Inventories are subsequently measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value or where intended for distribution 
(or consumed in the production of goods for distribution) at no or a nominal charge, the lower of cost and current 
replacement value.
The cost of inventories is assigned by using the weighted average cost basis.

27 Employee benefits

The value of each major class of employee benefit obligation (accruals, payables not recognised and provisions) is disclosed 
in the Employee benefits note.
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1.	 ANNUAL APPROPRIATION 

1.1 	 Annual Appropriation

Included are funds appropriated in terms of the Appropriation Act (and the Adjustments Appropriation Act) for National Departments (Voted funds) and Provincial 
Departments:

2017/18 2016/17

Final 
Appropriation

Actual Funds 
Received

Funds not 
requested/not 

received

Final 
Appropriation

Appropriation 
received

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Administration 454 324 454 324 - 455 041 455 041
Executive Support 46 845 46 845 - 34 734 34 734
TOTAL 501 169 501 169 - 489 775 489 775

2.	 STATUTORY APPROPRIATION 

2017/18 2016/17
R’000 R’000

President and Deputy President salaries 6 373 6 035
TOTAL 6 373 6 035

Actual Statutory Appropriation received 6 373 6 035

3.	 DEPARTMENTAL REVENUE 

Note 2017/18 2016/17
R’000 R’000

Sales of goods and services other than capital assets 3.1 301 350
Interest, dividends and rent on land 3.2 28 59
Sales of capital assets 3.3 - 107
Transactions in financial assets and liabilities 3.4 569 827
Total revenue collected 898 1 343
Departmental revenue collected 898 1 343

The variance is due to no sale of assets and less recovery of prior year’s expenditure (Transactions in financial assets and liabilities) in 2017/18.

3.1	 Sales of goods and services other than capital assets

Note 2017/18 2016/17
3 R’000 R’000

Sales of goods and services produced by the department 301 350
Sales by market establishment 135 176
Other sales 166 174

TOTAL 301 350

3.2	 Interest, dividends and rent on land 

Note 2017/18 2016/17
3 R’000 R’000

Interest 28 59
TOTAL 28 59
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3.3	 Sale of capital assets

Note 2017/18 2016/17
3 R’000 R’000

Tangible assets - 107
Machinery and equipment 27 - 107

TOTAL - 107

No capital assets sold for cash in 2017/18 financial year

3.4	 Transactions in financial assets and liabilities

Note 2017/18 2016/17
3 R’000 R’000

Other Receipts including Recoverable Revenue 569 827
TOTAL 569 827

The variance is due to less recovery of prior year’s expenditure in 2017/18 financial than in the 2016/17 financial year

4.	 COMPENSATION OF EMPLOYEES

4.1	 Salaries and Wages

Note 2017/18 2016/17
R’000 R’000

Basic salary 197 923 198 622
Performance award 4 786 4 226
Service Based 384 237
Compensative/circumstantial 21 537 21 270
Other non-pensionable allowances 51 185 51 107
TOTAL 275 815 275 462

4.2	 Social contributions

Note 2017/18 2016/17
R’000 R’000

Employer contributions
Pension 23 063 22 833
Medical 10 239 10 389
Bargaining council 45 44
TOTAL 33 347 33 266
Total compensation of employees 309 162 308 728

Average number of employees 582 637
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5.	 GOODS AND SERVICES 

Note 2017/18 2016/17
R’000 R’000

Administrative fees 3 274 3 052
Advertising 422 447
Minor assets 5.1 563 775
Bursaries (employees) 1 302 1 421
Catering 3 042 2 725
Communication 7 435 11 170
Computer services 5.2 33 031 23 833
Consultants: Business and advisory services 2 648 3 397
Legal services 18 914 12 259
Contractors 3 171 4 012
Agency and support/outsourced services 5 618 3 489
Entertainment - 1
Audit cost – external 5.3 5 606 4 618
Fleet services 2 719 2 926
Consumables 5.4 6 887 9 007
Operating leases 5 110 5 529
Property payments 5.5 389 823
Rental and hiring 143 315
Travel and subsistence 5.6 49 800 59 232
Venues and facilities 336 1 236
Training and development 1 036 3 501
Other operating expenditure 5.7 2 147 2 224
TOTAL 153 593 155 992

5.1	 Minor assets

Note 2017/18 2016/17
5 R’000 R’000

Tangible assets 563 775
Machinery and equipment 563 775

TOTAL 563 775

Less minor assets procured in the 2017/18 financial year than the previous year.

5.2	 Computer services

Note 2017/18 2016/17
5 R’000 R’000

SITA computer services 25 724 14 914
External computer service providers 7 307 8 919
TOTAL 33 031 23 833

Increase in expenditure due to more expenditure relating to E-Cabinet as compared to less expenditure incurred in the previous year.

5.3	 Audit cost – External 

Note 2017/18 2016/17
5 R’000 R’000

Regularity audits 5 606 4 618
TOTAL 5 606 4 618
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5.4	 Consumables

Note 2017/18 2016/17
5 R’000 R’000

Consumable supplies 2 962 3 928
Uniform and clothing 574 1 179
Household supplies 2 184 2 575
Building material and supplies - 72
Communication accessories 39 25
IT consumables 41 47
Other consumables 124 30

Stationery, printing and office supplies 3 925 5 079
TOTAL 6 887 9 007

The decrease in expenditure in 2017/18 is due to decrease in demand for stationary by users.

5.5	 Property payments

Note 2017/18 2016/17
5 R’000 R’000

Other 389 823
TOTAL 389 823

The decrease in expenditure is due to the security services that were no longer required by the department as a result of office relocation.

5.6	 Travel and subsistence

Note 2017/18 2016/17
5 R’000 R’000

Local 25 883 34 222
Foreign 23 917 25 010
TOTAL 49 800 59 232

Reduced number of trip delegations and slowing down of expenditure as a result of change in administration.

5.7	 Other operating expenditure

Note 2017/18 2016/17
5 R’000 R’000

Professional bodies, membership and subscription fees 574 352
Resettlement costs 164 236
Other 1 409 1 636
TOTAL 2 147 2 224

6.	 INTEREST AND RENT ON LAND 

Note 2017/18 2016/17
R’000 R’000

Interest paid - 46
TOTAL - 46

7.	 PAYMENTS FOR FINANCIAL ASSETS

Note 2017/18 2016/17
R’000 R’000

Other material losses written off 7.1 837 786
Debts written off 7.2 332 198
Forex losses 7.3 2 3
TOTAL 1 171 987

The variance is due to increase in approved debt write offs
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7.1	 Other material losses written off

Note 2017/18 2016/17
7 R’000 R’000

Nature of losses
Damages and losses 837 786
TOTAL 837 786

7.2	 Debts written off

Note 2017/18 2016/17
7 R’000 R’000

Nature of debts written off
Recoverable revenue written off
Debt account 251 -
TOTAL 251 -

Other debt written off
Staff debt 81 198
TOTAL 81 198

Total debt written off 332 198

7.3	 Forex losses

Note 2017/18 2016/17
7 R’000 R’000

Nature of losses
Damages and losses 2 3
TOTAL 2 3

8.	 TRANSFERS AND SUBSIDIES

2017/18 2016/17
R’000 R’000

Note
Provinces and municipalities 30 10 3
Public corporations and private enterprises Annex 1C - 42
Households Annex 1D 6 147 3 197
TOTAL 6 157 3 242

The increase in expenditure on transfers is due to more staff taking early retirement.

9.	 EXPENDITURE FOR CAPITAL ASSETS 

Note 2017/18 2016/17
R’000 R’000

Tangible assets 17 010 12 051
Machinery and equipment 27 17 010 12 051

Intangible assets 144 -
Software 28 144 -

TOTAL 17 154 12 051

The increase is expenditure for capital assets is due to data storage project and enhancement of existing intangible assets.
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9.1	 Analysis of funds utilised to acquire capital assets – 2017/18

Voted funds Aid assistance Total
R’000 R’000 R’000

Tangible assets 17 010 - 17 010
Machinery and equipment 17 010 - 17 010

Intangible assets 144 - 144
Software 144 - 144

TOTAL 17 154 - 17 154

The increase in expenditure for capital assets is due to data storage project and enhancement of existing intangible assets.

9.2	 Analysis of funds utilised to acquire capital assets – 2016/17

Voted funds Aid assistance Total
R’000 R’000 R’000

Tangible assets 12 051 - 12 051
Machinery and equipment 12 051 - 12 051

TOTAL 12 051 - 12 051

9.3	 Finance lease expenditure included in Expenditure for capital assets

Note 2017/18 2016/17
R’000 R’000

Tangible assets
Machinery and equipment 4 224 5 842

TOTAL 4 224 5 842

10.	 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Note 2017/18 2016/17
R’000 R’000

Consolidated Paymaster General Account 13 164 10 912
Cash on hand 104 104
TOTAL 13 268 11 016

11.	 PREPAYMENTS AND ADVANCES

Note 2017/18 2016/17
R’000 R’000

Travel and subsistence 21 21
Prepayments (Not expensed) 11.2 5 567 1 420
Advances paid (Not expensed) 11.1 121 120
TOTAL 5 709 1 561

The material increase on Prepayments not expensed is due to more software licences purchased in March 2018 for the 2018/19 financial year.

11.1	 Advances paid (Not expensed)

Note
Balance as at 
1 April 2017

Less: Amount 
expensed in 
current year

Add: Current 
Year 

prepayments

Balance as at 
31 March 2018

11 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
National departments 120 - 1 121
TOTAL 120 - 1 121
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11.2	 Prepayments (Not expensed)

Note
Balance as at 
1 April 2017

Less: Amount 
expensed in 
current year

Add: Current 
Year 

prepayments

Balance as at 
31 March 2018

11 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Goods and services 1 420 1 399 5 545 5 566
Transfers and subsidies - - 1 1
TOTAL 1 420 1 399 5 546 5 567

The material increase on Prepayments not expensed is due to more software licences purchased in March 2018 for the 2018/19 financial year.

11.3	 Prepayments (Expensed)

Note
Amount as at 
1 April 2017

Less: Received in 
the current year

Add: Current 
Year 

prepayments

Amount as at 
31 March 2018

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Goods and services - - 132 132
TOTAL - - 132 132

11.4	 Advances paid (Expensed)

Note
Amount as at 
1 April 2017

Less: Received in 
the current year

Add: Current 
Year 

prepayments

Amount as at 
31 March 2018

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
National departments - - 544 544
TOTAL - - 544 544

12.	 RECEIVABLES

2017/18 2016/17
Current Non-current Total Current Non-current Total

Note R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Claims recoverable 12.1 888 - 888 939 - 939
Staff debt 12.2 2 027 246 2 273 406 242 648
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 12.4 183 - 183 2 - 2
Other debtors 12.3 746 - 746 1 359 - 1 359
TOTAL 3 844 246 4 090 2 706 242 2 948

12.1	 Claims recoverable

Note 2017/18 2016/17
12 and Annex 3 R’000 R’000

National departments 888 900
Private enterprises - 39
TOTAL 888 939

12.2	 Staff debt

Note 2017/18 2016/17
12 R’000 R’000

Salary related 582 648
Debt Account 2 229 -
TOTAL 2 273 648

12.3	 Other debtors

Note 2017/18 2016/17
12 R’000 R’000

Dis-allowance damages and losses 746 1 359
TOTAL 746 1 359
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12.4	 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Note 2017/18 2016/17
12 R’000 R’000

Opening balance 2 -
Less amounts recovered (104) -
Less amounts written off (2) -
Transfers from note 24 Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure 284 2
Interest 3 -
TOTAL 183 2

The increase in receivables for fruitless and wasteful expenditure is due to salary overpayment that happened in 2016/17 and the debt was taken on in 2017/18  
financial year.

12.5	 Impairment of receivables

Note 2017/18 2016/17
12 R’000 R’000

Estimate of impairment of receivables 603 500
TOTAL 603 500

13.	 VOTED FUNDS TO BE SURRENDERED TO THE REVENUE FUND

Note 2017/18 2016/17
R’000 R’000

Opening balance 14 764 6 731
Transfer from statement of financial performance (as restated) 20 305 14 764
Paid during the year (14 764) (6 731)
Closing balance 20 305 14 764

14.	 DEPARTMENTAL REVENUE AND NRF RECEIPTS TO BE SURRENDERED TO THE REVENUE FUND

Note 2017/18 2016/17
R’000 R’000

Opening balance 157 119
Transfer from Statement of Financial Performance (as restated) 898 1 343
Paid during the year (790) (1 305)
Closing balance 265 157

14.1	 Prior period error

Note 2016/17
14 R’000

Nature of prior period error
Relating to 2016/17 4
Overstatement of revenue paid out to the National Revenue Fund. 26
Overstatement of departmental revenue collected (22)
Total prior period errors 4

The prior period error is due to overstated revenue collected and revenue paid out to the National Revenue fund in 2016/17 financial year.

15.	 PAYABLES – CURRENT

Note 2017/18 2016/17
R’000 R’000

Clearing accounts 15.1 227 160
Other payables 15.2 1 2
TOTAL 228 162
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15.1	 Clearing accounts

Note 2017/18 2016/17
15 R’000 R’000

Description
Salary deductions 227 160
TOTAL 227 160

15.2	 Other payables

Note 2017/18 2016/17
15 R’000 R’000

Description
Amount payable to previous employees - 2
Other payables 1 -
TOTAL 1 2

16.	 NET CASH FLOW AVAILABLE FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Note 2017/18 2016/17
R’000 R’000

Net surplus/(deficit) as per Statement of Financial Performance 21 203 16 107
Add back non cash/cash movements not deemed operating activities (3 624) 5 178
(Increase)/decrease in receivables – current (1 142) 2 399
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments and advances (4 148) (443)
Increase/(decrease) in payables – current 66 (686)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets - (107)
Expenditure on capital assets 17 154 12 051
Surrenders to Revenue Fund (15 554) (8 036)
Net cash flow generated by operating activities 17 579 21 285

17.	 RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FOR CASH FLOW PURPOSES

Note 2017/18 2016/17
R’000 R’000

Consolidated Paymaster General account 13 164 10 912
Cash on hand 104 104
TOTAL 13 268 11 016

18.	 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS

18.1	 Contingent liabilities

Note 2017/18 2016/17
18 R’000 R’000

Liable to Nature
Claims against the department Annex 2A - 263
Intergovernmental payables (unconfirmed balances) Annex 4 1 275 1 493
Other Annex 2A 1 360 4 690
TOTAL 2 635 6 446

There are two categories of cases in this regard:

The first category relates to cases in which The Presidency is a respondent in court proceedings. These cases are not claims in monetary terms. However, if The Presidency is 
not successful in its opposition of these matters, The Presidency may be ordered to pay costs to the successful parties. The second category relates to cases in which the court 
has already ordered The Presidency to pay the legal costs of the successful parties. The amounts payable by The Presidency are yet to be determined by the Taxing Master. 
Rule 45(2) of the Uniform Rules of the High Court provides that “ No process of execution shall issue for levying and raising costs awarded by the court to any party, until they 
have been taxed by the taxing master or agreed to in writing by the party concerned in a fixed sum”
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19.	 COMMITMENTS

Note 2017/18 2016/17
19 R’000 R’000

Current expenditure
Approved and contracted 62 331 71 061
Approved but not yet contracted - 1 584

62 331 72 645
Capital expenditure
Approved and contracted 264 191

264 191
Total Commitments 62 595 72 836

13 contracts are longer than 1 year.

The reduction in commitments is due to expired contracts and the current year portion of e-Cabinet contract that was paid.

20.	 ACCRUALS AND PAYABLES NOT RECOGNISED

20.1	 Accruals

2017/18 2016/17
R’000 R’000

Listed by economic classification
30 Days 30+ Days Total Total

Goods and services 3 122 2 955 6 077 5 817
Capital assets 490 41 531 447
Other 504 - 504 -
TOTAL 4 116 2 996 7 112 6 264

Note 2017/18 2016/17
20 R’000 R’000

Listed by programme level
Administration 5 620 6 198
Executive Support 1 492 66
TOTAL 7 112 6 264

20.2	 Payables not recognised

2017/18 2016/17
R’000 R’000

Listed by economic classification
30 Days 30+ Days Total Total

Goods and services 2 584 40 2 624 2 430
Capital assets 6 8 14 121
Other 45 - 45 -
TOTAL 2 635 48 2 683 2 551

Note 2017/18 2016/17
R’000 R’000

Listed by programme level
Administration 2 682 2 511
Executive Support 1 40
TOTAL 2 683 2 551

Note 2017/18 2016/17
R’000 R’000

Included in the above totals are the following:
Confirmed balances with other departments Annex 4 2 338 3 749
TOTAL 2 338 3 749
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21.	 Employee benefits

Note 2017/18 2016/17
R’000 R’000

Leave entitlement 11 719 12 844
Service bonus (Thirteenth cheque) 6 327 6 339
Performance awards 4 678 4 629
Capped leave commitments 4 446 5 007
Other 198 228
TOTAL 27 368 29 047

Negative pro-rata leave credits: 159.62 days in the current leave cycle. Monetary value: R200 034.60.

22.	 LEASE COMMITMENTS

22.1	 Operating leases 

2017/18

Specialised 
military 

equipment
Land

Buildings and 
other fixed 
structures

Machinery and 
equipment

TOTAL

Not later than 1 year - - - 3 764 3 764
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - - - 2 133 2 133
Total lease commitments - - - 5 897 5 897

2016/17

Specialised 
military 

equipment
Land

Buildings and 
other fixed 
structures

Machinery and 
equipment

TOTAL

Not later than 1 year - - - 3 723 3 723
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - - - 4 466 4 466
Total lease commitments - - - 8 189 8 189

The Operating Lease Commitments mainly comprises of G-Fleet vehicles, Photocopiers and Cellphone contracts that run from month to month. 

The decrease in operating lease commitments is due to contracts that are coming closer to expiry.

The department does not have any Operating sub-leased assets.

22.2	 Finance leases

2017/18

Specialised 
military 

equipment
Land

Buildings and 
other fixed 
structures

Machinery and 
equipment

TOTAL

Not later than 1 year - - - 5 789 5 789
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - - - 3 124 3 124
Total lease commitments - - - 8 913 8 913

2016/17

Specialised 
military 

equipment
Land

Buildings and 
other fixed 
structures

Machinery and 
equipment

TOTAL

Not later than 1 year - - - 2 268 2 268
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - - - 1 726 1 726
Later than five years - - - - -
Total lease commitments - - - 3 994 3 994

The Finance Lease Commitments mainly comprises of Cell Phone contracts, PABX telephone system and Photo Copiers. The Finance lease commitments have increased as 
new contracts have been entered into.

The department does not have any Finance sub-leased assets.
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23.	 IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE

23.1	 Reconciliation of irregular expenditure

Note 2017/18 2016/17
R’000 R’000

Opening balance 19 361 13 873
Prior period error - -
As restated 19 361 13 873
Add: Irregular expenditure – relating to prior year 9 907 8 396
Add: Irregular expenditure – relating to current year 14 650 8 517
Less: Prior year amounts condoned (248) (1 386)
Less: Amounts not condoned and not recoverable (4 300) (10 039)
Closing balance 39 370 19 361
Analysis of awaiting condonation per age classification
Current year 14 650 24 720
Prior years 29 463 10 844
TOTAL 39 370 19 361

An amount of R4,3 million for prior years was derecognised in 2017/18 financial year. The increase in irregular expenditure in 2017/18 is due to prior year irregular 
expenditure that was understated by R9,907 million for corporate management fees; other non-compliance with supply chain management processes not disclosed in 
2015/16 and 2016/17 financial years ; overtime exceeding 30% .

23.2	 Details of irregular expenditure – added current year (relating to current and prior years)

Incident Disciplinary steps taken/criminal proceedings
2017/18
R’000

Contract exceed 15% (Current) Enquiry memo submitted to Responsible unit 60
Contract exceed 15% (Current) Enquiry memo submitted to Responsible unit 128
Services rendered without a valid contract (Current) Enquiry memo submitted to Responsible unit 423
Three quotation not obtained (Prior year) Letter to request condonment sent to the National Treasury. 19
Contract exceed 15% (Prior year) Enquiry memo submitted to Responsible unit 296
Contract exceed 15% (Prior year) Enquiry memo submitted to Responsible unit 223
Services rendered without a valid contract (Prior year) Enquiry memo submitted to Responsible unit 270
Services rendered without a valid contract. Traveling agency (Prior year) Under investigation 5 041
Services rendered without a valid contract. Traveling agency (Current year) Under investigation 2 743
Services rendered without a valid contract (Current year) Under investigation 3 413
Local content not promoted (Current year) Under investigation 69
Three quotation not obtained (Current year) Under investigation 3
Three quotation not obtained (Current year) Under investigation 18
Training services (Current year) Under investigation 863
Order amount exceeded R500 000 Under investigation 851
Non-compliance with cost containment measures(Prior year) Under investigation 1 420
Non-compliance with cost containment measures(Current year) Under investigation 616
Deviation from SCM processes: Current Under investigation 1 749
Overtime exceeding 30% threshold: Prior year Under investigation 2 638
Overtime exceeding 30% threshold: Current year Under investigation  3 714
TOTAL 24 557

23.3	 Details of irregular expenditure condoned

Incident Condoned by (condoning authority)
2017/18
R’000

Deviation from SCM processes National Treasury 248
TOTAL 248

The irregular expenditure amounting to R248 thousand was condoned by National Treasury on the 27 June 2018.
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23.4	 Details of irregular expenditure not recoverable (not condoned)

Incident Not condoned by (condoning authority)
2017/18
R’000

Non-compliance to Preferential Procurement Framework Amount derecognised 4 300
TOTAL 4 300

23.5	 Details of irregular expenditure under investigation (not included in the main note)

Incident
2017/18
R’000

Legal costs emanating from SCM processes not adhered to Litigations and claims  9 023
TOTAL 9 023

Prior years irregular expenditure was understated by R9 023 million for legal costs emanating from SCM processes not adhered to.

24.	 FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE

24.1	 Reconciliation of fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

Note 2017/18 2016/17
R’000 R’000

Opening balance 1 102 1 115
Prior period error - -
As restated 1 102 1 115
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure – relating to prior year 7 354 -
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure – relating to current year 20 514 92
Less: Amounts resolved (1 673) (103)
Less: Amounts transferred to receivables for recovery 12.4 (284) (2)
Closing balance 27 013 1 102

The increase compared to prior year is due to E-Cabinet system not fully utilised.

24.2	 Analysis of awaiting resolution per economic classification

2017/18 2016/17
R’000 R’000

Current 27 013 1 102
TOTAL 27 013 1 102

24.3	 Analysis of Current year’s (relating to current and prior years) fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

Incident Disciplinary steps taken/criminal proceedings 2017/18
R’000

No Show Written off by Loss Control Committee 36
No Show Referred to Loss Control Committee for consideration 1
Double payment Refunded and under investigation 257
Erroneous payment Refunded 13
No Show Under investigation 41
System not utilised current and prior year Under investigation 26 911
Three quotations not obtained Under investigation 37
Cancelled trips Under investigation 9
Salary overpayment An amount of R270 thousand was written off and R130 thousand 

was transferred to receivables for recovery 400
Non pensionable allowance overpayment, salary overpayment and 
cancellation of trip (prior year)

Non pensionable allowance overpayment: Transferred to receivables, 
Salary overpayment and cancellation of trip written off by the Loss 
Control Committee. 163

TOTAL 27 868
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25.	 KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

No. of 
Individuals

2017/18 2016/17

R’000 R’000
Political office bearers (provide detail below)
Officials: 3 5 712 5 713

Level 15 to 16 21 30 453 30 414
Level 14 (incl. CFO if at a lower level) 20 20 687 21 940

TOTAL 56 852 58 067

26.	 PROVISIONS

Note 2017/18 2016/17
R’000 R’000

DA v President of RSA and EFF v President of RSA and Others 3 200 3 200
TOTAL 3 200 3 200

DA v President of RSA and EFF v President of RSA and Others

26.1	 Reconciliation of movement in provisions – 2017/18

Provision 1 Provision 2 Provision 3 Total provisions
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Opening balance 3 200 - - 3 200
Closing balance 3 200 - - 3 200

Reconciliation of movement in provisions – 2016/17

Provision 1 Provision 2 Provision 3 Total provisions
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Opening balance 286 42 - 328
Increase in provision 56 - 3 200 3 256
Settlement of provision (174) (42) - (216)
Change in provision due to change in estimation of inputs (168) - - (168)
Closing balance - - 3 200 3 200

2016/17 Provision 1: Case was finalised and all affected employees paid. Provision 2: Case was finalised. Provision 3 is the Case of DA v President of RSA and EFF v President 
of RSA. 2017/18 Provision 1 is the case of DA v the President of the Republic of South Africa and the EFF v President of the Republic of South Africa and others.

27.	 MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

MOVEMENT IN MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

Opening balance
Value 

adjustments
Additions Disposals Closing Balance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
HERITAGE ASSETS 16 - - - 16
Heritage assets 16 - - - 16

MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT 88 894 - 6 711 4 226 91 379
Transport assets 4 094 - - - 4 094
Computer equipment 60 137 - 2 073 2 341 59 869
Furniture and office equipment 19 200 - 4 557 1 627 22 130
Other machinery and equipment 5 463 - 81 258 5 286

TOTAL MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS 88 910 - 6 711 4 226 91 395

The additions for tangible assets have decreased as a result of the completion of an asset in the prior year which was brought into the asset register in 2016/17.
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MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS UNDER INVESTIGATION
Number Value 

R’000
Included in the above total of the movable tangible capital assets per the asset register are assets that are 
under investigation:
Machinery and equipment 150 1 994

The number pertains to assets still under investigations as at 31 March 2018 and there is ongoing project to address the matter.

27.1	 Additions

ADDITIONS TO MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

Cash Non-cash

(Capital Work in 
Progress current 
costs and finance 
lease payments)

Received current, 
not paid

(Paid current 
year, received 
prior year)

Total

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT 17 010 2 003 (12 301) (1) 6 711
Computer equipment 10 150 - (8 077) - 2 073
Furniture and office equipment 2 561 2 003 - (7) 4 557
Other machinery and equipment 4 299 - (4 224) 6 81
TOTAL ADDITIONS TO MOVABLE 
TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS 17 010 2 003 (12 301) (1) 6 711

Non cash additions pertains to assets transferred from the Department of Monitoring, Planning and Evaluation in terms of section 42 of the PFMA. The additions for tangible 
assets have decreased as a result of the completion of an asset in the prior year which was brought into the asset register in 2016/17.

27.2	 Disposals

DISPOSALS OF MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

Sold for cash
Non-cash 
disposal

Total disposals
Cash Received 

Actual
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT - 4 226 4 226 -
Computer equipment - 2 341 2 341 -
Furniture and office equipment - 1 627 1 627 -
Other machinery and equipment - 258 258 -
TOTAL DISPOSAL OF MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS - 4 226 4 226 -

Disposal mainly comprises of redundant computer equipment scrapped and donation of assets to schools/ Non -Governmental Organisations.

27.3	 Movement for 2016/17

MOVEMENT IN TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

Opening balance
Prior period 

error
Additions Disposals Closing Balance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
HERITAGE ASSETS 16 - - - 16
Heritage assets 16 - - - 16

MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT 62 467 (161) 34 143 7 555 88 894
Transport assets 3 496 - 821 223 4 094
Computer equipment 35 729 (191) 30 438 5 839 60 137
Furniture and office equipment 17 638 (4) 2 698 1 132 19 200
Other machinery and equipment 5 604 34 186 361 5 463

TOTAL MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS 62 483 (161) 34 143 7 555 88 910
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27.3.1	 Prior period error

Note 2016/17
R’000

Relating to 2016/17 (161)
Duplicated assets removed and cost adjustments (88)
Prior disposals not removed (73)
TOTAL PRIOR PERIOD ERRORS (161)

The prior period error relates to duplicated assets and cost adjustments.

Capital Work-in-progress

CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS AS AT 31 MARCH 2018

Note

Opening balance 
1 April 2017

Current Year 
WIP

Ready for use 
(Assets to the 
AR)/Contracts 

terminated

Closing balance 
31 March 2018

Annexure 5 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Machinery and equipment - 8 077 - 8 077
TOTAL - 8 077 - 8 077

The capital work in progress relates to the data storage system that was not yet completed as at 31 March 2018.

CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS AS AT 31 MARCH 2017

Note

Opening balance 
1 April 2016

Prior period 
error

Current Year 
WIP

Ready for use 
(Assets to the 
AR)/Contracts 

terminated

Closing balance 
31 March 2017

Annexure 5 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Machinery and equipment 29 227 - 1 148 (30 375) -
TOTAL 29 227 - 1 148 (30 375) -

27.4	 Minor assets

MOVEMENT IN MINOR ASSETS PER THE ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS AT 31 MARCH 2018
Specialised 

military assets
Intangible assets Heritage assets

Machinery and 
equipment

Biological assets TOTAL

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Opening balance - - - 17 349 - 17 349
Additions - - - 1 702 - 1 702
Disposals - - - (2 917) - (2 917)
TOTAL MINOR ASSETS - - - 16 134 - 16 134

Specialised 
military assets

Intangible assets Heritage assets
Machinery and 

equipment
Biological assets TOTAL

Number of R1 minor assets - - - 345 - 345
Number of minor assets at cost - - - 12 450 - 12 450
TOTAL NUMBER OF MINOR ASSETS - - - 12 795 - 12 795

Minor Capital Assets under investigation

Number Value 
R’000

Included in the above total of the minor capital assets per the asset register are assets that are under investigation:
Machinery and equipment 425 404

The number and value pertains to assets still under investigations as at 31 March 2018.
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MOVEMENT IN MINOR ASSETS PER THE ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS AT 31 MARCH 2017
Specialised 

military assets
Intangible assets Heritage assets

Machinery and 
equipment

Biological assets TOTAL

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Opening balance - - - 18 910 - 18 910
Prior period error - - - 9 - 9
Additions - - - 715 - 715
Disposals - - - (2 285) - (2 285)
TOTAL MINOR ASSETS - - - 17 349 - 17 349

Specialised 
military assets

Intangible assets Heritage assets
Machinery and 

equipment
Biological assets TOTAL

Number of R1 minor assets - - - 345 - 345
Number of minor assets at cost - - - 13 022 - 13 022
TOTAL NUMBER OF MINOR ASSETS - - - 13 367 - 13 367

27.4.1	 Prior period error

Note 2016/17
R’000

Nature of prior period error
Relating to 2016/17 9
Duplicated assets removed, cost adjustment, fair market value valuations. 17
Prior disposal not removed (8)
TOTAL PRIOR PERIOD ERRORS 9

The prior period error relates to duplicated assets and cost adjustments.

27.5	 Movable assets written off
	

MOVABLE ASSETS WRITTEN OFF FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS AT 31 MARCH 2018
Specialised 

military assets
Intangible assets Heritage assets

Machinery and 
equipment

Biological assets TOTAL

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Assets written off - - - 3 511 - 3 511
TOTAL MOVABLE ASSETS WRITTEN OFF - - - 3 511 - 3 511

MOVABLE ASSETS WRITTEN OFF FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS AT 31 MARCH 2017
Specialised 

military assets
Intangible assets Heritage assets

Machinery and 
equipment

Biological assets TOTAL

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Assets written off - - - 9 618 - 9 618
TOTAL MOVABLE ASSETS WRITTEN OFF - - - 9 618 - 9 618

28.	 INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS
	

MOVEMENT IN INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

Opening balance
Value 

adjustments
Additions Disposals Closing Balance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
SOFTWARE 1 095 - 144 - 1 239
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28.1	 Additions
	

ADDITIONS TO INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

Cash Non-Cash

(Development 
work in 

progress – 
current costs)

Received 
current year, 

not paid 
(Paid current 
year, received 
prior year)

Total

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
SOFTWARE 144 - - - 144
TOTAL ADDITIONS TO INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS 144 - - - 144

Additions are due to enhancement of existing intangible assets.

28.2	 Movement for 2016/17

MOVEMENT IN INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

Opening balance
Prior period 

error
Additions Disposals Closing Balance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
SOFTWARE 837 - 258 - 1 095
TOTAL INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS 837 - 258 - 1 095

29.	 PRIOR PERIOD ERRORS

29.1	 Correction of prior period errors 

Note
Amount before 
error correction

Prior period 
error 

Restated
Amount

2016/17 2016/17 2016/17
R’000 R’000 R’000

Revenue: 
Departmental revenue paid out to the National Revenue Fund overstated 14.1 (1 331) 26 (1 305)
Overstatement of Departmental revenue collected 3 1 365 (22) 1 343
NET EFFECT 34 4 38

Overstatement of departmental revenue paid out and collected in 2016/17 financial year

Note
Amount before 
error correction

Prior period 
error

Restated
Amount

2016/17 2016/17 2016/17
R’000 R’000 R’000

Assets: 
Computer equipment 27.3 35 729 (191) 35 538
Furniture and office equipment 27.3 17 638 (4) 17 634
Other machinery and equipment 27.3 5 604 34 5 638
Minor assets 27.4 18 910 9 18 919
Intangible capital assets: software 28 837 258 1 095
Cash and cash equivalent: Consolidated paymaster general account 10 10 908 4 10 912
NET EFFECT 89 626 110 89 736

The corrections were required due to duplicated assets removed. Prior disposals removed and adjustment of cost on affected assets. Consolidated Paymaster General account 
was understated in 2016/2017 financial year due to overstatement of departmental revenue paid out and collected in 2016/17 financial year. The prior period error on 
intangible assets is due to additions that were omitted in the prior year
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Note
Amount before 
error correction

Prior period 
error

Restated
Amount

2016/17 2016/17 2016/17
R’000 R’000 R’000

Liabilities:
Employee benefits:
Leave entitlement 21 12 946 (102) 12 844
NET EFFECT 12 946 (102) 12 844

Correction is due to leave entitlement overstated in 2016/17 financial year as a result of leave that was captured after 31 March 2017.

30.	 STATEMENT OF CONDITIONAL GRANTS AND OTHER TRANSFERS PAID TO MUNICIPALITIES

NAME OF MUNICIPALITY

GRANT ALLOCATION TRANSFER

DoRA and 
other transfers

Roll 
Overs

Adjustments
Total 

Available
Actual 

Transfer
Funds Withheld

Re-allocations 
by National 

Treasury 
or National 
Department

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 %
City of Tshwane - - 10 10 10 - -
TOTAL - - 10 10 10 - -
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ANNEXURE 1A
STATEMENT OF CONDITIONAL GRANTS AND OTHER TRANSFERS PAID TO MUNICIPALITIES

NAME OF MUNICIPALITY

GRANT ALLOCATION TRANSFER SPENT 2016/17

Division 
of 

Revenue 
Act and 
other 

transfers

Roll 
Overs

Adjust-
ments

Total 
Availa-

ble

Actual 
Transfer

Funds 
With-
held

Re-allo-
cations 
by Na-
tional 

Treasury 
or Na-
tional 

Depart-
ment

Amount 
received 

by 
munici-
pality

Amount  
spent by 
munici-
pality

Unspent 
funds

% of  
available 

funds 
spent by 
munici-
pality

Division 
of 

Revenue 
Act

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000
City of Tshwane - - 10 10 10 - - - - - - 3
TOTAL - - 10 10 10 - - - - - - 3
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ANNEXURE 1B
STATEMENT OF TRANSFERS TO DEPARTMENTAL AGENCIES AND ACCOUNTS

DEPARTMENTAL AGENCY/ACCOUNT

TRANSFER ALLOCATION TRANSFER 2016/17

Adjusted
Appropria-

tion

Roll 
Overs

Adjustments
Total 

Available
Actual 

Transfer

% of 
Available 

funds 
Transferred

Final 
Appropria-

tion

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000
Com: Licenses 36 - (36) - - - -
TOTAL 36 - (36) - - - -
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 ANNEXURE 1C
STATEMENT OF TRANSFERS/SUBSIDIES TO PUBLIC CORPORATIONS AND PRIVATE ENTERPRISES

NAME OF PUBLIC 
CORPORATION/PRIVATE 
ENTERPRISE

TRANSFER ALLOCATION EXPENDITURE 2016/17

Adjusted
Appropria-

tion Act

Roll 
Overs

Adjust-
ments

Total 
Available

Actual 
Transfer

% of 
Available 

funds 
Transferred

Capital Current
Final Appro-

priation

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000 R’000
Private Enterprises
Claims against the state - - - - - - - - 42
Transfers and subsidies - - - - - - - - 42
TOTAL - - - - - - - - 42
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ANNEXURE 1D
STATEMENT OF TRANSFERS TO HOUSEHOLDS

HOUSEHOLDS

TRANSFER ALLOCATION EXPENDITURE 2016/17
Adjusted

Appropria-
tion 
Act

Roll 
Overs

Adjustments
Total 

Available
Actual 

Transfer

% of 
Available 

funds 
Transferred

Final 
Appropria-

tion

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000
Transfers
Leave Gratuity 2 214 - - 2 214 2 623 118% 1 541
Claims Against State - - - - - - 205
Severance Package/Early retirement 3 936 - (9) 3 927 3 484 89% 1 451
Other Transfers (PMT/Refund and Rem-ACT) - - 40 40 40 100% -

6 150 - 31 6 181 6 147 - 3 197
TOTAL 6 150 - 31 6 181 6 147 - 3 197
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ANNEXURE 1E
STATEMENT OF GIFTS, DONATIONS AND SPONSORSHIPS RECEIVED

NAME OF ORGANISATION NATURE OF GIFT, DONATION OR SPONSORSHIP
2017/18 2016/17
R’000 R’000

Received in kind
Pick n Pay Soshanguve Food parcels - 10
Cell C Foundation 50 school back packs/water bottles - 2
PSM and Vukuzenzele Free advertising for internship - 64
TOTAL - 76
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ANNEXURE 1F
STATEMENT OF GIFTS, DONATIONS AND SPONSORSHIPS MADE 

NATURE OF GIFT, DONATION OR SPONSORSHIP
(Group major categories but list material items including name of organisation

2017/18 2016/17
R’000 R’000

Made in kind
Pick n Pay Soshanguve (Donation of sanitary towels for school girls) - 3
Cash Contribution towards employees funeral:
Linda Manyane (employee 1) - 10
Yandisa Gubayo (employee 2) - 10
Keabetswe Dutch Mohale (employee 3) - 10
Maria Pila (employee 4) - 10
Cash Contribution towards employees funeral:
Employee 1: Eulice Zandile Maseko 10 -
Employee 2: Emily Mamoepa 10 -
Employee 3: Aluwani Tshifuro 10 -
Employee 4: Nelly Monama 10 -
Redundant Office Furniture & Equipment donated to schools:
Bodubelo Primary School - 343
Bud-Mbele Primary School - 350
Bula-Dikgoro Primary School - 181
Ikageng Primary School - 453
Lesolang Primary School - 365
Meetse-a-Bophelo Primary School - 261
Tsuene High School - 85
Rakale Primary School - 95
Sipamandla High School - 77
Children on the move 118 -
Ethafene Primary School 9 -
Ihlumelo Secondary School 8 -
North Gauteng Mental Health 121 -
Phadima Gape Organisation 116 -
Rata Special Services 102 -
Shalom Primary School 115 -
Tshwane Child Welfare 106 -
Youth for Survival 83 -
TOTAL 818 2 253
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ANNEXURE 2A
STATEMENT OF CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AS AT 31 MARCH 2018

NATURE OF LIABILITY

Opening 
Balance 

Liabilities 
incurred during 

the year

Liabilities paid/
cancelled/

reduced during 
the year

Liabilities 
recoverable 

(Provide details 
hereunder)

Closing Balance

1 April 2017 31 March 2018

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Claims against the department      
Employee vs The Presidency 263  - (263) - -
Subtotal 263 - (263) - -
Other  
Pending case : Disputed Invoices 1 270 - (1 270) - -
Pending case : Disputed Invoices 368 - (368) - -
Pending case : Disputed Invoices 191 - (191) - -
Pending case : Disputed Invoices 676 2 (678) - -
Pending case : Disputed Invoices 2 185 - (825) - 1 360
Subtotal 4 690 2 (3 332) - 1 360
TOTAL 4 953 2 (3 595) - 1 360

There are two categories of cases in this regard:

The first category relates to cases in which The Presidency is a respondent in court proceedings. These cases are not claims in monetary terms. However, if The Presidency is 
not successful in its opposition of these matters, The Presidency may be ordered to pay costs to the successful parties.

The second category relates to cases in which the court has already ordered The Presidency to pay the legal costs of the successful parties. The amounts payable by The 
Presidency are yet to be determined by the Taxing Master. Rule 45(2) of the Uniform Rules of the High Court provides that “ No process of execution shall issue for levying 
and raising costs awarded by the court to any party, until they have been taxed by the taxing master or agreed to in writing by the party concerned in a fixed sum”
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ANNEXURE 3
CLAIMS RECOVERABLE

GOVERNMENT ENTITY

Confirmed balance 
outstanding

Unconfirmed balance 
outstanding

Total
Cash in transit at year end 

2017/18 *

31/03/2018 31/03/2017 31/03/2018 31/03/2017 31/03/2018 31/03/2017

Receipt date 
up to six (6) 
working days 
after year end

Amount

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Department
DIRCO 720 - 138 214 858 214 - 720
DPME 30 75 - 8 30 83 - -
Home Affairs - 7 - - - 7 - -
DTI - 240 - 4 - 244 - -
GCIS - 108 - - - 108 - -
Water and Sanitation - 138 - 106 - 244 - -
TOTAL 750 568 138 332 888 900 - 720
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ANNEXURE 4
INTER-GOVERNMENT PAYABLES

GOVERNMENT ENTITY

Confirmed balance 
outstanding

Unconfirmed balance 
outstanding

TOTAL
Cash in transit at year end 

2017/18 *

31/03/2018 31/03/2017 31/03/2018 31/03/2017 31/03/2018 31/03/2017

Payment date 
up to six (6) 
working days 
before year 

end

Amount

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
DEPARTMENTS
Current
Higher Education and Training - 17 - - - 17 - -
Justice and Constitutional 
Development 1 789 3 732 463 1 380 2 252 5 112 - -
Government Communications 123 - - - 123 - - -
Department of Home Affairs - - - 113 - 113 - -
Trade and Industry 45 - - - 45 - - 45
International Relations 381 - 812 - 1 193 - - -
TOTAL 2 338 3 749 1 275 1 493 3 613 5 242 - 45
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ANNEXURE 5
MOVEMENT IN CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS

MOVEMENT IN CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

Opening balance
Current Year 
Capital WIP

Ready for use 
(Asset register)/

Contract 
terminated

Closing balance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT - 8 077 - 8 077
Computer equipment - 8 077 - 8 077
TOTAL - 8 077 - 8 077

MOVEMENT IN CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

Opening balance
Prior period 

error
Current Year 
Capital WIP

Ready for use 
(Asset register)/

Contract 
terminated

Closing balance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT 29 227 - 1 148 (30 375) -
Computer equipment 28 274 - 1 148 (29 422) -
Furniture and office equipment 953 - - (953) -
TOTAL 29 227 - 1 148 (30 375) -
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ANNEXURE 6A
INTER-ENTITY ADVANCES PAID (Note 11)

ENTITY
Confirmed balance outstanding Unconfirmed balance outstanding TOTAL
31/03/2018 31/03/2017 31/03/2018 31/03/2017 31/03/2018 31/03/2017

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
NATIONAL DEPARTMENTS
International Relations 121 120 - - 121 120
TOTAL 121 120 - - 121 120
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AFS Annual Financial Statements
APP Annual Performance Plan
ARC African Regional Centre
AU African Union
B-BBEE Broad-based Black Economic Empowerment
BEEAC Black Economic Empowerment Advisory Council
BRICS Brazil, Russia, India, China and South Africa
CFO Chief Financial Officer
COO Chief Operations Officer
DG Director-General
DPME Department of Planning, Monitoring and Evaluation
DPSA Department of Public Service and Administration
DIRCO Department of International Relations and Cooperation
DRC Democratic Republic of Congo
FOSAD Forum of South African Directors-General
G20 Group of 20
GCIS Government Communication and Information System
GDP Gross Domestic Product
HOD Head of Department
HRDC Human Resource Development Council
IMC Inter-Ministerial Committee
LOGB Leader of Government Business
MPAT Management Performance Assessment Tool
MPSA Ministry of Public Service and Administration
MRM Moral Regeneration Movement
MTEF Medium-Term Expenditure Framework
MTSF Medium-Term Strategic Framework
NDB New Development Bank
NDP National Development Plan
NEDLAC National Economic Development and Labour Council
NHTL National House of Traditional Leaders
NPC National Planning Commission
NYDA National Youth Development Agency
OAU Organisation of African Unity
OSD Occupation Specific Dispensation
PCC President`s Coordinating Council
PCAS Policy Coordination and Advisory Services
PEP Public Employment Programme
PFMA Public Finance Management Act
PICC Presidential Infrastructure Coordinating Commission
PSR Public Service Regulations
RMC Risk Management Committees
SADC Southern African Development Community
SALGA South African Local Government Association
SANAC South African National AIDS Council
SARS South African Revenue Service
SAS Special Audit Services
SCM Supply Chain Management
SDG Sustainable Development Goals
SMS Senior Management Service
SOEs State-owned Enterprises
SOP Standard Operating Procedure
SONA State of the Nation Address
TB Tuberculosis
TVET Technical Vocational and Education Training
UN United Nations
UNGA United Nations General Assembly
YES Youth Employment Services
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